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Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Sen. Brewster

& W

Mr. Mitchell: I think there wevre One or two messales

' such a8 the “dmiral speaks of in exhibit 1.

i Mr. Murphy: And theve 18 also a reference 1in Matsuoka's
l

‘messaze to Hitler that might lead to such an inference.
[ :

. Mr. Gesell: I thought the Senator was veferrvring to

|
g

'ones other than in the exhibit,
i ;
;f Senator Ferguson: I am, The letter maybe mizht refresh
i

. you.

Senator Brewster: Well, I have a letter from Mr., Mitchell
gaying that there was ﬁo eéldonoe that the Japanese had any
' knowledge that we wevre breaking thelr codes or suspeoted 1%,
and that the evidence was all to the contrary. VYo you ve-

call that letter, Mr. Mitchell?

Mv. M1tohell: Yes. That is based on a report from the

. Department that we made inquiry of.
|

: Senator Brewster: Yes.

Mv. Mitohell: I 444 not know it personally. I for-

warded to you thelr veport.

Senator Brewster: Yes,
Mv. Mitchell: But I think there ave one ovr two messages

'4n exhibit 1 that makes the same report, that the Japs were

'fat one time fearful of certain ones of their codes being

¥ -
Ei Senator Brewster: Well, I have one hove. and 1t 1s

- I | "
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Questions by: Sen, Brewster

~dated the 23rd 1ay of June, 1941, from Tokyo to Mexico, it

| appears on page 122 of thg intercepts, concerning milit:vry
éinatallationa, shlp movements, and so forth and it says:

; "Furthermore, since the‘Panama Legation , in their
i #62* from Panama to me, mentioned the question of a
trip, get in touch with them regarding dato.and time of
arvival, (American surveillance will unquestionably be
vigilant. There ave also some suspicions that they vead
someé of our codes. Therefore, we wish to exercise the
utmost caution in accomplishing this mission. Also, anj
telegrams exchanged between you an& Panama should be very
simple. )"

Now, that, of course, is scuavrely in oonflioct with the

|
|
':vepovt whioh apparently the Navy Department gave you, 1is it
'not, indlocating that at least the Jﬁpanese suspeoted that we

weve breaking their code.

Mr. Mitohell: I assume the Navy kept vright on oracking
| them, 8o we oan assume the Japs d1d not know that, I suppose

'that 1s why they made that statement. Obviously that one

| -
| message contalns a suspiolon that we might be.

!
|

Senator Brewester: Yes.

Ll

ﬁ Mr. Mitohell: But wWe kept right on breaking them and

'I assume that if the Jape had known we had broken them they

would have fixed them up,

o oSl s et 4 ot bl L . n...h.l.u...ahkrﬂ
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Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Sen.Brewster

Senator Brewster: I am asking for information.
Mr. Mitchell: Well, you asked me if they were not in
| confliot?
}
\

| Senator Brewster: Yes, and you agreed that it is. Now,

- the intercepts vun from July lst to December 7?th and I asked

. some time ago for the earlier intervepts, after I wae refused
permission to examine the files, as I was vreliably informed

that there were five cablegrame which made very specific rve-

|

i ference to this matter of which the Admiral now speake, that
| : |
| the Germane had apparently discoverei something of this kind |
|

. and communicated it to the Japanese in this interchange of |

I
'imoaaagea between Berlin and Tokyo regarding this and in thie

matter, - I am simply ociting veporte which the Adwiral ocon-

fivrme now, or &t least intimates in his refercnoce to the Ger-

———

mens, I eay I am at least suvrprised that the Navy would glve

. You the information that there was nothing to indicate this

if theve avre four or five messages of this chavacter in theirp

files.

Mv. Mitchell: To be epecific, do I understand you would

*ﬁliko to have any intercepts back to January 1st, 1941 of
':this typb that indicate the suspioion, is that what you arve

f 1ntofested in?
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Senator Brewster: VWell, -I certainly am, but I also
call attention to my letter of November 15, in which I
acknowledge the receipt of these intercepts from July 1,
to December 8, and added I would greatly appreclate 1if
you would send me another copy of this material, as well
as a copy of all such intercepted messages between January
lst and July 1lst, 1941,

To that, I, as far as I know, have received no reply.
That was a month ago.

I think you will remember, Mr. Mitchail, ten days ago,
in executive session, I spoke of this matter as a matter

thet I thought was of considerable interest, in view of

the very great emphasis which had been placed on the complete

l1gnorence of the Japanese of the fact that we were breaking
their code.

Mr. Mitchell: I understand what you are especially
Interested in is the messages that have to do with the
question of whether the Japs suspected our cracking the
code. It is so much easier to pet results if we know
what wve are after. I am just asking you the queétion, to
get an indication as to what you are reslly interested in,

3enator Brewster: I think my interest has been made
manifest also in a ldter to you in which I asked specific-

ally whether there was anything to indicate e Japs hed
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either knowledge or suspicion that we were breaking their
codes, and your reply, based on the Navy Department'!s

information, was that there was nothing to indicate either,
and your reply was that all the evidence vas to the con-
trary.

Mr. Mitchell: That is exactly the report as 1t was
glven to us. I never asked them what their evidence was,
but I assumed it was a fact because we kept on breaking
the code, indicating that the Japs werenot aware of it.

I will get from the Navy just what the basisof that report
is. I do not know,

Senator Brewster: You just heard Admiral Wilkinson
testify that he understood there were 1indications that
Berlin had given the Ja.pem'eae' a tip on this., I think
it is unfortunate that the.Navy should have given you a
report of this character, if what Admirsal Wilkinson says
now 1is correct. '

My, Murghy:  That is two or thres times that the
statement is in the record.

3enator Brewster: I can quite understand the concern
of the gentleﬁan over aything which seems in any way to
be in conflict here, but I think 1t is a rather important

point, on which great emphesis has been laid, and I would

like to know whether or not these messages exist. It is

¥
-
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very significant to me that thes intercepts were given us

vack to July lst when these m2ssages apparently occurred,

in May and June. I have been trying for more than a month
to get them., I spoke to counsel about this in the execu-

tive session ten days ago, and now I am advised that they

would like to know just what it i1s I am after.

Mr. Murphy: You aré using that microphone rather
loudly. This 1s three times that that statement is in the
record nowv,

The Vice Chairman: I think counsel understand, Sehator.
I am sure they will continue to cooperate in every way
possible,

Are there any other queat;qna of Admiral Wilkinson?

Senator Brewster: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I have further

b2
»
I
O
P
v
»
-
5
=3
»
Vv
=
L
(4
-
0
-
O
N

questions of rdmiral Wilkinson.

Senator Ferguson: Mr. Chairma.n, I have a memo that

I would like to refer to the counsel, and might refresh

——

their memory. It is dated the 17th of November, and signed

by Mr. Mitchell, It was received by me November 17 at

3D M

- —— e TR S ——

(The document referred to was handed to Mr. Mitchell.)

Mr, Mitchell: That is the same thing, I think, to

which Senator Brewster just referred,

Senator Brewster: You gave me the same answer?
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Mr. Mitchell: Yes,

Senator Ferguson: Has this been put in the record?

Mr. Mitchell: No.

Senator Ferguson: I will put this in the record. It
is dated November 17, 1945,

"Memorendum to Senator Ferguson:

"Wwith reference to your letter of November 1l6th, re-
questing 'all information that any of the JServices or
the Government had that Japan kaew thﬁt we had broken thelr
code!, there is no information or indication that Japan
sver kasw 1t. All information would indicate the contrary."

Now, Mr, Chairman, that indicates that Mr. Mitchell
signed it, and th2 initlials in the lower lefthand corner
are"WwDM/CBN." 1

That would indicate, Mr. Chairman, it was answered the
dey following the regumsat for that information. I requested

it on the 16th, and the letter came on the 17th.

Mr. Mitehall; I have been sitting here wondering Jjust

what the special significance and the importance in this

inquiry 1s the question of whether prior to June, 1941,
or at any time, the Japs suspected that we were cracking
their code. I confess it would help me a bit to work this

thing out, if I knew just what bearing 1t has on the caso;

T am probably dumb about it, but I do not quite grasp 1t.

RITTEILT . T & S i Y& - LY 9 M)
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I have an idea that maybe that attitude may have had
something to do with the fect that maybe I did not follow
up your request as diligently as I otherwise would.

' Senator Brewster: I should be veryfhappy to glve
you what 1s in my apparently simple mentality. The
first thing which has interested me a great déal on this
particular episode, Mr, Mitchell, 1s if what Admiral
Wilkinson now says 1s correct, then the Navy has not been
glving you complete or accurate information when they
tell you there was nothing to indicate that the Japs knew
or suspected that we were breaking thelr codes.

That has been, as you know, a matter in which I had
some concern about your previous willingness to submit
the data.

As I said to you and others, that was the first point
of my interest in this episode.

Mr. Mitchell: You made that request before the
Admiral made that statement. I am trying to get back to
your point of view as to the materiality of that in this
hearing.

Senator Brewster: I am.comiﬁg to that.

Mr. Mit;hell: All right.

. Senator Brewster: The second polnt, I had thought

that one of the very outstanding malters that had been

shal-b ) * e . sl ’ et R e ’ Ty .
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emphasized here, and in fact you yourself examined General

Mershell at great length regarding this very matter in

connection with the Dewey episode, that a great state
secret existing here was magic, and that the Japs had
no knowledge or suspicion that we were breaking their
codes, 'and apparently very great importance haﬁ been
ettached to that throughout this learing.
If there 1s anything to Indicate that 1s not so, we must

all, to some extent, revise our estimate of the situation |

in the light of that possibility or probaebility. At least
that is my observation in all this evidence. I cannot other-
wise reconcile the whole Dewey episode.

Now, if, back in May or June, 1941, there were messages
indicating that the Japs suspected that this was happening,
1f 1t was of great importance, I cannot understend why
this has not been developed. I cannot understand why the
Nevy will tell you there was nothing to indicate it. If
1t 1s not of any importence, why do not they just simply
give us the facts and the messages, end if it is of import-
ance, and there 1s any suggestion of concealment, that is
something we must take into accouhé.

Mr. Murphy: Mr. Chairmen, I might say, the gentleman
from Maine has benmn absent for some days. Yesterday we

spent 20 minutes on tirades in connection with the Republican

.S L] . - » .
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National Committee, and now we have spent 20 minutes in
trying counsel, talking about the Dewey episode. I
suggest that we talk about Pearl Harbor; I suggest that
we proceed to inquire as go what happened at Pearl Harbor.
The Vice Chairmen: I am sure the counsel understand
the gentlemanis request now, and I hope we can move along.
Senator Brewster: I certainly will be most ﬁleased to.
I am not at all surprised that the gentleman from Pennsyl-
vanla 1s conslderably concerned over the necessity of
my replying to the question of counsel. I have beeh rather
patlent myself, and perhaps 1t is just as well, and this
vill clarify it. |
The Vice Chairman: I think it does, Senator. I have
heard every witness who has testified, and my clear impres-
slon i1s that the remark just made by Admirael Wilkinson

is the first intimation that has come out in the course of

this hearing that the Japanese had ever suspected that their

code might have been broken. I know other witnesses have
been asked the question whether there was anything to indi-
cate that Japan had ever suspected that the code had been

broken, and their testimony was that there was nothing to

indicate it, until just at this moment when Admiral Wilkinson

had mede the remark in response to the guestion, and I think

that is the first intimation that has cone to the committee

Tl ER—
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that anybody thought Japan might have had any knowledge

that the code had been broken.

Senator Brewster: Mr. Chairman, I thank you very much

for that observation, and I hope you agree with me that

this does have a distinct relevance in establishing 1it.
The Vice Chalrman: Of course, if the Senator wants

information, I am sure counsel will cooperate in’ every

possible way to secure it, and to glve 1t to the Senator

wvhen it is secured. .
Senator Ferguson: Mr., Chalrmen, might I just say I ﬁ

do not think we have wasted time this morning on this ques-

tion as to whether or not counsel is able to obtain for

us immediately upon our request information material to

the matter that we have before us. I think as to whether

or not the services are obtaining the information for us

is very vital to this hearing. Now 1f we have a request

in on the 16th daf of November for certain materisl and that

is material that 1s in the files, and then the fact that we

get a reply immediately on the 17th of November, and we walt

until the 18th day of December and do not jave that informa-

tion, that q;estion is very vital to the thing that we are

trying. Are we getting the cooperation of the serviées or

are we merely here taking what the services desire to

give us?
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h9 . | That 1s the question.
I raised it on the floor and I raise 1t again here.
& i That 1s very vitel to this case. Are we getting
' {
; vhat they want to give us, when they want to give it to us, ’
o |, or are they going to give it to us because 1t 1is material - | ;
L |
) .
; | to this issue as we request it?
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Witness Wilkinson

Mr. Keefe; Mr. Chairman, may I interpose for a moment?

The Vice Chairman: Does the Senator yield? |

Senator Brewster: Yes, I will yield.

The Vice Chairman: Senator Brewster ylelds.

Mr. Keefe; About the request for information and the
speed with wvhich it has returned, I have asked time and again
for information and some of those requests were propounded
in the first two or three days of this hearing.

In one instance it wvas promised to me in two days in
respect to one request, and to date I have only received
one or two responses of any kind to any request I have made.

You will recall that on the second or third day of these
hearings I asked Admiral Inglis 15 respect to the condition
of the Fleet, in respect to her figh@ing ability, on the
7th day of December when it was in the harbor. He told me
that the CALIFORNIA was practically hors de combat because
of an inspection and because of boxed ammunition. The noon
hour intervened, and when he came back he said they were
investigating it and he would report to me Immediately, and
to date I have received no report on the ships, except what
m come to me from 1qtters from men on the ships, and who
know, who were in a position to know whether their fighting
condition was reduced because of open voids and the boxing

of ammunition, and the type of inspection that was carried

il R, : re -
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Witness Wilkinson

on. That is one thing.

While we were quizzing the Admiral, Admiral Inglis in
whis room, I made a request on Friday and the material was
énromised -me for Monday, and that request has not been complied
with.

I can go on and read the list from my notes -- I haven't
2ot my notes here -- but I have made at least 25 requests
and I am sure only two or three of which have been complied
¥ith. I wanted the information for the purpose of interroga-
tion of witnesses at the proper time.

I have been told that they have liaison committees in
the State Department, in the war Department and Navy Depart-
ament who are standing by all the time to get the information

just as rapidly as it 1s humanly possible to get it. Now

-cne month goes by and although you have mede an important

request there is no intimation from counsel at all as to
whether or not that request had been looked into.

We oannot.' help but wonder as to what is the cause of
this great delay. That has caused me great exasperation and

I can only say we have been receiving spoon-fed evidence.

If we have the information certainly we will be in a better

position to conduct an intelligent cross-examination.
That is all I want to say at this time.,

Hr. Mitchall: May I bve permitted to say something?
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The Vice Chairman: Mr. Mitchell.

‘ Mr. Mitchell: In regard to your request for the condi-
tion of the ships on Pearl Harbor Day, when they were inspected
«nd open and all that -sort of thing, I think we have already
orought in some data on that. I think it was during your
absence within the last few dayﬁ.

The Vice Chairman: Last Saturday. | |

Mr. Gearhart: I was sick in bed one day. The report
came to the committee when I was absent one day. I wonder
why that was done. * .:

The Vice Chairman: That was done on Saturday when, |
unfortunately, the gentleman from California was unavoidably
absent, and wve regret that. The counsel made a report to
the committee, which sat for about an hour longer than we
had expected, for counsel to make a report to the committee
on various requests that had been made during the hearing
by the different members of the committee.

'Dﬁring the course of that report to the committee I
»ecall that quite a number of the things requested by the
zentleman from California were presented and included in the
record. If the gent:len;a.n will examine the record of last
Saturday, the day on which he was unable to be here, I think

ne will find at least responses to many of his requests,

and the counsel mtde the statement that the information that

1 -ﬁhﬂt‘- VPP VN TVREW PN P A g, o, ST TROEWTN LY ST AT ST IS L..-.-.L.-L
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Witness Wilkinson

vas not being submitted at that time and that had been re-
quested would be submitted as quickly as it could be secured.

The counsel gave us & rather exhaustive report along

" that 1line last Saturday. I am sure that many of the requests

'made by the gentleman from California were complied with in

the course of that report.

Mr. Gearhart: May I inquire as to whothor' or not the
schart I requested showing the numerical readiness of the
Fleet in the Pacific, that I asked of Admiral Inglis, was
mentioned?

Mr. Mitchell: There are so many of these that I cannot
pick from memory the generality. We have be_en engaged in the
last week checking up from the transcript to be sure that
everything that was asked for orally here in the past will
he submltted.

Mr. Gearhart: I requested & chart showing the number
of ships that were in the Pacific on May 1lst and the transfers
#rom that Fleet to the Atlantic, and the augmentations from
ship construction, and then I also asked for that information
for the Atlantic Ocean as well, in chart form, and Admiral
Tnglis said he would have it two days later.

I have been told -- information has come to me from
reliable sources -- that that report has already been sub-

mitted to counsel. Can counsel verify 1it?
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Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Senator Brewster
The Vice Chairman

Mr. Mitchell: I have no recollection of seeing it. I
will find out during the noon hour if it is in our files.

The Vice Chairman: I do recall, Mr. Gearhart, you made
the request about the BOISE. That was included in the record
last Saturday, and I am sure counsel will have the gentleman's

request checked and every effort will be made to.comply with

.his request.

Senator Broewster: May‘ I just ask that Admiral Wilkinson
will check on those oablégl'ama » the intercepts during the
noon hour so wve can get this thing clarified? :

Admiral Wilkinson: My only recollection was a dispatch
Yrom Berlin, I think, to Tokyo, indicating that the Germans
thought we might be reading the Ja@eae codes and varning
tihem about 1it.

Senator Bret;ater: i underhtoqd there were five messages ,'

on this subject between Tokyo and Washington. I would like

to have a complete file.

The Vice Chairman: Admiral, you understand the Senator's
*equest? 5

Admiral Wilkinson: Yes.

The Vice Chairman: You will make every effort to comply
with 1t?

Admiral Wilkinson: Yes, sir.

Mr. Murphy: [Mr. Chairman, I would like to have the record

o 78 A pleae™y ¢ y e e st s s SRS LR, L A0 ot b e Dl LSS o e s o
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Witness Wilkinson

" suotis that not one question was asked the witness in the last

® | ne1f-hour.

- —

A | The Vice Chairman: The committee will stand in recess
~ | antil 2:00 o'clock.
0 (Whereupon, at 12 o'clock noon, the committee recessed

N until 2:00 ofclock p.m. of the same day.)
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AFTERNOON SESSION 2:00 P.I.

TESTIMONY OF REAR ADMISAL THEODORE STXRK WILKINSON

i (resumed)
|. The Vice Chalrman: The committee will be in crder.

' Senator Brewster will Tesume his inquiry.
1 -
“ Sanator Brewsteri Admirzl, were ycu able to securae those

I wires Aduring the recess? I think they were radlograms.
He

Agmiral Wilkinson: I have not been able to loocate 1t
r fo date. The lialson officer_for the Navy Department has
made the specific inquiry for that dispatch. I have talked
F to my predecessor, Admirai Kirk, who Baiﬁ he reca;la it as

a message from the Japanese Ambassador 1n Berlin to the home

L

off ice in Tokyo that the German Foreign Minlster Von Ribben-

| trop had advised him that there were indications that the
l

' Ameriosns were breeking Japanese codes.
1 1 may state, of course, that there were a number of
codes, some of which arg relatively simple and c&n be recdily
| broken, others are more complex, and the very reading of one
? code would not be any assurance that others or the entire

| bulk of them were beiny broken. The only indication would be
with respect to such a mésaage that we were at least attacking
' their codes.

| I do know that in the late fall, - in the early fall and

| the late fall we had some worries aboul the Japanese finding

i
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Witness Wilkinson Questicrns by: Sen, Brewster

:
 that out and the Japanese suspicions, although w8 414 not be-

lliove from the tenor of thqir dispatches that they were con-
l

,vinced at all that we were breaking them and those worries
occaslioned our tightening up of security concerning inter-

|

oepte and occasioned our being particularly careful about

rbroaﬂening in any degree the text or even knowledze obtained
irrom the text of such messages.

Senator Brewster: ‘'hen you say there are different
'codes, how frequently are they changed ordinarily?
I Admiral Wilkinson: Again 1t 13 a matter for a communica-
| tor tc glve expert knowledge, but there is in general, I under-

lstand, two types of concealed message, One 18 a code and the

|
other 1s a cipher applicable to that code. The code 18 con-

|

tained in a book and to change it you have to issue ancther

|book, The oclpher may be changed from day to day and often 1s.

¥ You must first break the oipher on any messaze befcore
you can tell what the oconcealed message 18 and then you must
have the ocode to know what the words which have now been de-

‘rived, or the groups which have now been derived mean under

ith&t code.

Answerlng your question directly then, the ociphers were

i

very frequently changed, sometimes from day to day, and the
ﬂr
I!oodea would not be changed so often, perhaps once a month or

|
|
ieven & year or more.

|
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Witness wilklnlon_ Questions by: Sen. Brewster

| Senator Brewster: How many are they likely to have in
|

use at any one time? How many would they be likely to have
: in uee at any one time of codes as distinot from tho Cliphers?
h Admiral Wilkinson: Ch, perhaps ten or twelve: A diplo-
& matic code, a naval attache's code, a military, & oonsular, some
| very secret codes for each of thoss and some day to day oodes.

| Senator Brewster: And the interpretation of any one was

dependent either upon breaking it as iou d1d or upon having

the code book to enable you to easlly translate 1t?

Admiral Wilkinson: Yes, And the knowledge thatwe were

| 18 more or less of an international praotioce. The knowledge
- that we had suoceeded in breaking some of the eBimpler codes

| would not be particularly elgnificant, If they knew def in-

1tely we had broken their most secret ocodes 1t would be a

-
—— ——

|
j;matter of great concern. .
|

Senator Brewster: It 18 not oconsidered that there 1sg

g anything particularly reprehensible in this practice, 1is 1t?

"Ien't 1t a rather well recognized praoctice in the internag-

|
- tlonal code of morality that that 18 done by e2ll governments

) in the intarest of their national seocurity?

£ Admiral Wilkinson: I think so., I do not think that

"governmenta are partioularly desirous to admit 41t but I think

‘it has been done in the past, sir,
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|
' Witness Wilkinseon Questions by: Sen. Brewster

Senator Brewster: Yes,

Admirel Wilkinson: Whether it 1s being continued today

)

in all ocountries I do not know.

u Senator Brewster: Wasn't ther> a rather conspicuous

Ioaae in our own history during and after the last war about

|
|

' certain translations that were made in time of peace?

j Admiral Wilkinson: My recolleotion 18 not authentic at

;all but I know that in the last war we d4id have a so-called
I:Blaok Chamber.,

S enator Brewster: Yes,
| Admiral Wilkinson: And that some time affer the last

war I belleve the then Secretary of State deoided that he would

abolish 1t completely and all esuch activities on our part were

*thoh disocontinued for a time,

I

The Vice Chairman: If you will permit me, Senator, you

:and'tho Senator were both referring to the last war. You
I
are talking about World War I?

Admliral Wilkinson: Yes, World War I. This one 18 too

= S S

E recent to be known as the last war,
! The Vice Chairman: Well, both of them are last wars
NOW.

Senator Brewster: '7as that discontinued ;t that time

when Henry L. Stimseon was Secretary of State?

Admiral Wilkinson; I do not know.

——
e
-
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Senator Brewster: I think it wae.,

Now, have counsel been able to secure any further in-

j-form;tion about these messages? Have they made any inquiries

. from the Navy Department about 1t?
r

iy
J .
'

ﬁ in the stenographic record of yesterday at this point?

The Vice Chairman: Yes, go ahead, That won't disturd

. You, will 1it, Senator?

: Senaztor Brewster: No.
|

|

i1

[ Admiral Wilkinson: On page 4575, referring to the re-

The Vice Chairman: Go ashead, Admiral.

i sponsibility of the Office of Naval Intelligence regarding

l
. probable intentions of the enemy, in the middle of the page

the record shows that ny anawbr To a question was:

"I 414 not so understand, and I have the informa-
tion, as I said, from my predecessor, my discussion

; with Admiral Ingersoll, the Assistant Chief of Opera-

tions, and just this morning from Admiral Kirk, also my

predecessor,"
That last phrase should read, " and Just this morning
I have received a dlspatch from Admiral James who was a

predecessor in turn of my predecessor, Admiral Kirk, to

| that effeot.,"

- Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Sen. Brewster

Mr., ‘Mitohellz They are hard at work and so is the Army.

Admliral Wilkinson: Mr, Chairman, may I suggest a change
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Questions by: Sen. Brewster

The Vice Chairman: Does that complete your ocorrection?

Admiral Wilkinson: Yes.

The Vice Chairman: Senator Brewster.

Senator Brewster: In connection with the discusslon of
the answering of t}m questions, I believe, of Judge Clark,
about the  threat of the American Navy on the flank of the

Japanese operations, in replying to that you pointed out on

"Our navy was much smaller then than it was ulti-
mately and in faot at that time it was smaller than the
Japanese fleet in the Pacifio."

How long had that condition prevailed so far as you

Admiral Wilkinson: Sir, our navy was smaller than the
Japanese fleet in the Pacific. I meant, of course, our
force in the Pacific 1tself,

Senator Bréwster: Yes, I understand that.

Admiral Wilkinson: I think that had in general pre-
valled throughout the year of 1941 and the disparity had been
somewhat increased by the necessity of sending ships to thp
Atlantio,'one of which, in faot, was my'ahip, the battleship
Mississippi, in May of 1941,

Senator Brewsater: You brought that from Pearl Hafbor

to New York or ther=abeouts?

1

s . i
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Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Sen, Brewster

Admiral Wilkinson: From Pearl Harbor to the Atlantio,

"and then I was operating on the Atlantic patrol until I came

. ashome to the Offlice of Naval Intelligenoce.

Senator Brewster: Were there other battleships moved

‘at that time?

|

|

't
|
|
|
i

|
i
i
|
i

— o —

- -

B — O — - T — . . S——
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Admiral Wilkinson: Yes,

Senator Brewster: ihat were they?

Admiral Wilkinson: The Idaho and New Medico, as I re-
member 1t, one carrier and three or four cruisers and some
elght destroyers.

Senator Brewster: And what was the relative rank of the
two navles before that transfer, approximately?

Admiral Wilkinﬂbﬁz Of the navies as a whole or of the
forces 1in the Pacifio? -

Senator Brewster: No, the Pzcifioc fleet and the Japan=
ese fleet, '

Admiral Wilkinson: I would prefer to refer to Admiral
Inglis'! testimony on that subject. My impression 1a‘that
there was a slizht disparity azainst the United States foroce.

Senator Brewste®; Even before that time?

Admliral Wilkinson: Even before that time.

el AR TN e e b Ttk ¢ .M
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Questions by: Senator Brewster

Mr. Gesell: May I interpose, Senator?

Senator Brewster; Yes.

Mr. Gesell: Congressman Gearhart raised before the
recess the question of whether we had received a response to
his requost for a statement showing the relative strength of
naval combatant units of various kinds in the Atlantic and
Pacific on May 1, 1941 and December 7, 1941, including a
comparison between the strength of our Navy and I believe the
Navies t;f Allied and potential enemy powers.

We have gotten that material. I handed a copy to
Congressman Gearhart, and we have one copy for every member
of the committee,

I Interpose with it now because it relates directly to
your question. |

Senator Brewster: Would you want to put that in the
record now so it may be available?

Mr. Gearhart: I would 1like to have it included in the
record, Mr. Chairman.

Senator Brewster: Will you offer it as an exhibit then?

Mr. Gesell: We will then offer this material as Exhibit
£0, and perhaps we better have it spread upon the transcoript
so 1t wiJTI be available to every member 'of the committee.

The Vioe_ Chairman: Yes. So ordered.

Senator Brewster: That will appear 1in the transcript
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tomorrow morning.

Mr. Gesell: Yes.

(a)
(e)
(f)

'.
|
' (c)
i
1 (g)

P, P P N
= R e

I destroyers.

Tncludes 3 Yugoslavian, 1 Greek,

marked Exhibit 86.)

(Exhibit 86 is as follows:)

I AXIS

| VICHY OTHER AUG-
' GERMANY ITALY FRANCE - MENTATIONG

Battleships & @) 5.8 B8 :

~ Alrcraft Cerriers - - 1 (h) -

| Heavy Cruilsers I 4 (¢) & - |
~ Light Cruisers 4 110a)  9xML) 2 (k)
~ Dastroyers: 15 (est.) 8% (e) 52 (J) 9 (1)
| Zubmarines 150 (est) 77 (£) 58 9 (m)
|

| () Includes 2 overage battleships, SCHLESIEN and

SCHLESWIG-HOLSTEIN.

(b) Includes damaged DUILIO and CAVOUR,
resting on bottom.

Includes damaged BOLZANO.

Tncludes 5 ineffective light cruisers.

Tncludes 2 ineffective destroyers.

Includes 8 ineffective submarines

Tneludes 4 damaged or incomplete battleships

(h) Interned in Martinique.

) Includes 2 interned in Martinique.

) Includes 4 demaged or

; Tncludes Yugoslavian

incomplete destroyers.

Includes 3 Yugoslavian, 6 Dutch submarines.

(The document referred to was

| NAVAL COMBATANT STRENGTH, ATLANTIC OCEAN, May 1, 1941.

TOTALS

17

1
12
26

- 160

294

heavily damaged,

DAIMACIA and Dutch GELDERLARD.
and 5 Norweglan
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NAVAL COMBATANT STRENGTH, ATLANTIC OCEAN, May 1, 1041.
ALLIED

UNITED GREAT FREE OTHER AUG-
STATES BRITAIN FRANCE MENTATIONS TOTALS

Battleships 6 16 (a)(b) 3 (g) - 25
Aircraft Carriers 3 7 (e¢)(a) - - 10
dnavy Cruisers 5 13 (e) 3 (h) X k) 22
Light Cruisers 8 30 (f) 1 (h) 2 (1) 41
Nestroyers 85 191 (f) 12 (1) 11 (m) 299
Submarines 53 65 (f) 8 (j) 15 (n) 141

(a) Includes 3 battle cruisers.

(b) Includes 6 battleships damaged and under repalr.

(6) Includes 1 escort carriler.

(d) Includes 1 large carrier damaged and under repair.

(e) Includes 5 heavy cruisers damaged and under repair.

(f) Estimated, no accurate figures available at this time.

g) Includes 2 base ships and 1 interned at Alexandria.

h) Interned at Alexandria.

Includes 4 incomplete and 3 interned at Alexandria.

Includes 1 incomplete and 1 interned at Alexandria.

Includes Greek GEORGIOS AVEROV.

Includes Dutch HEEMSKERCK and SUMATRA.

Includes 6 Greek, 1 Dutch, 2 Norweglan, and 2 Polish
destroyers.

(n) Includes 5 Greek, 7 Dutch, 1 Norwegian, 1 Polish

and 1 Yugoslavian submarine.

Py, PN, N, N
H Ktk
st N N N

\f




~ RAVAL COMBATANT STRENGTH, PACIFIC OCEAN, as of May 1, 1941.
AXIS
JAPAN  VICHY FRANCE TOTALS

Battleships 10 10
Liroraft Carriers 7 - 7
Heavy Cruisers 18 18
Light Cruisers 17 18
Destroyers :

Submarines 70

ALLTES

UNITED STATES | GREAT
Pacific - Asiatic BRITAIN DUTCH TOTALS

9 1 10
Alroraft Carriers 3 1 L
Heavy Cruisers 12 4(a) 17
Light Cruisers 9 13(b) 27
Destroyers 67 6(b) 93
3ubmarines 27 -(c) 70

Battleships

>3
»
=
J
P
v
>
C
r
-3
»
v
X
Z
(4}
-
O
£
o
n

(&) Includes 1 unit damaged and under repair.
(b) Estimated, no accurate figures available
(¢) Number unknown. Not enough data for estimate.
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CONFIDENTIAL
NAVAL COMBATANT STRENGTH, ATLANTIC OCFAN, December 7, 1941
- AXIS
GE OTHER

VICHY AUGMEN-
GERMANY ITALY FRANCE TATIONS TOTALS

Battleships 5(a) 6(b) 5(g) - 16
Aircraft Carriers - B l(h)} * = 1
Heavy Cruilsers ] 4(ec) Y - 12
" Light Cruisers L 12(d) 9(1) 2(k) 27
Destroyers 20(est.) 77(e) 53(Jj) 9(1) 159
Submarines 155(est.) 67(f) 60 9(m) 291

(2) Includes 2 overage battleships SCHLESEIN and SCHLESWIG-
HOLSTEIN.

. (b) 1Includes CAVOUR heavily damaged but afloat.
(¢c) Includes damaged BOLZANO and GORIZIA.

(d) Includes damaged D'AOSTA, BANDE NERE, and MONTECUCCOLI.

" (e) Includes 34 damaged destroyers.

(f) Includes 26 damaged submarines.

(g) Includes 3 damaeged or incomplete battleships.

(h) Interned at Martinique.

(1) Includes 2 interned st Martinique.

(j) Includes 7 damaged or incomplete.

(k) Includes Yugoslavian DALMACIA and Dutch GELDERLAND.

(1) Includes 1 greek, 5 Norweigisn, and 3 Yugoslavian
destroyers.

(m) Tneludes 6 Dutch, and 3 Yugoslavien submarines.
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4839

 CONFIDENTIAL

NAVAL COMBATANT STRENGTH, ATLANTIC OCEAN, December 7, 1941.

ALLIED
OTHER
UNITED GREAT FREE AUGMEN-
STATES BRITAIN FRANCE TATIONS TOTALS
Battleships - 6(a) 12(e)(f) 3(k) - 21
Adrcraft Carriers 4(b)(c) 8(g)(h) - - 12
Heavy Cruisers 5 12(1) 3(1) 1(o0) 21
Light Cruisers 8(4) 28(3) 1(1) 2(p) 39
Destroyers 92 225(3) 11(m) 11(q) 339
Submarines 58 80(J) 8(n) 15(r) 161
() Does not include ITORTH CAROLINA and WASHINGTON both on
- trials. .
(b) Does not include HORNET on trials,
(c) Includes LONG ISIAND (Escort Carrier).
(d) JUNEAU, ATIANTA, SAN DIEGO and SAN JUAN carried on
Atlantic Fleet lists but were not completed or commis-
| sioned end are not included.
(e) Includes 1 battle cruiser.
- (f) Includes one damaged battleship under repair.
" (g) - Includes 2 Escort Carriers,
(h) Includes 2 damaged aircraft carriers under repair,
(1) Includes 5 damaged heavy cruilsers under repair.
(j) Estimated. No accurate figures avallable.
(k) Includes 2 base ships and 1 interned at Alexandris.
(1) Interned at Alexandrie.
(m) Includes 4 incomplete, 2 interned and 1 repairing.
(n) Includes 1 incomplete and 1 interned at Alexandria,
(o) Includes Greek GEORGIOS AVEROV.
(p) 1Includes Dutch HEEMSKERCK and SUMATRA.
(@) Includes 6 Greek, 1 Dutch, 2 Norweglan, and 2 Polish

destroyers, ;
Includes 5 Greek, 7 Dutch, 1 Norwegian, 1 Polish, an
1 Yugoslavian submarine,
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{ Battleships

' Destroyers
Submarines

|
Battleships
Alrcraft

*iﬂeavy Cruisers
. Light Cruisers
. Destroyers

| Submerines

wvaters,

AXIS
JAPAN

' Alrcreft Carriers

- Heavy Cruisers
Light Cruisers

103

ALLTES

UNITED STATES
Pacific-Asiatic

10(a)
54(b) (c)
25(d)

n -~
QW =i

(e) Includes 1 battle cruiser.
. (f) Includes 1 damaged battleship under repalr

' {g) This aireraft carrier dameged and under repair
(h) Estimated, no accurate figures available.

(1) Number unknown. -Not enough data for estimate.

VICHY FRANCE

1
- 103
1
GREAT FREE
BRITAIN FRANCE DUTCH TOTALS
4{e)(r) = 13
1(g) - 4
4 - 17
17(h) - 31
13(h) 1 88
- (1) - 68

CONFIDENTIAL
. NAVAL COMBATANT STRENGTH, PACIFIC OCEAN, as of December 151007

- (b) Includes 4 destroyers assigned 14th Naval District.

':(c) Does not include destroyers assigned other West Coast
Naval Districts.

I
‘(d) Status of two submarines not clear.
|

TOTALS

' (&) Includes BOISE which at that time was escorting in Asiatic
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Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Senator Brewvster

Senator Brewster: I notice the date is May 1, 1941.
VWas that before or after you were detached?

Admiral Wilkinson: Immediately before. I left about
tWwo weeks later.

Senator Brewster: About the middle of May?

Admiral Wilkinson: Yes.

Senator Brewster: So that as of May 1st.-it would show
the three battleships and the other units you mentioned in
"he Pacific Fleet?

Admiral Wilkinson: It should so show.

Senator Brewster: There has been a good deal of dis-
cussion about the information which was available to Admiral
¥immel. I think it has appeared rather clearly that under
¢che limitations under which you were operating there was a
substantial amount of material bearing on the diplomatic
communications which you did not communicate to Admiral Kimmel.

Is that the way I understood your testimony?

Admiral Wilkinson: There was a substantial amount of
diiplomatic interchange of meéaages that was not sent verbatim,
or even in gist of thomselves outside of Washington either to
Admiral Hart, Admiral Kimmel, or to the Atlantic Fleet, for
instance. The summary of those with respect to the status
of the diplomatic negotiations was, however, contained in the

fortnightly situation wherein it was stated what the general
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Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Senator Brewster

»ogress of the negotiations wvas.

Senator B;'euster: I think in Mr. Gesell's question
viesterday, which was gone into rather clearly, whether it was
not proper to convey that information,-and there was a sub-
stantial amount of information bearing on the situation which
vas not commnicated to Admiral Kimmel. I think perhaps you
answered that "yes", and you agreed it was a substantial
amount but you kind of qualified it somewhat.

Admiral Wilkinson: There was certainly a substantial
samount that was not forwarded in detail.

Senator Brewster; Yes.

Admiral Wilkinson: With respect to the summary, for
instance, of the fortnightly summary of November 15, on the
Tirst page we find the diplomatic situation, paragraph 1:

"(1) Japan.

"The approaching crisis in United States-Japanese rela-
tions overshadowed all developments in the Far East during
tl.e period.

"Sabui'o Kurusu, former Japanese Ambassador to Berlin,
is flying to Washington with compromise Japanese proposals.
Mo one apparently expects his mission to succeed, the Envoy
nimself reportedly expressing extreme' pessimism. American
afaokasmen, including Secretary Knox, have :I.nd:l.cate;l that

the United States will not budge frcm her position. Prime

T . A R P B P P T T T, g Ly . (R Y N TRy, orE
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Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Senator Brewster

“inister Glivshiii warued that if war breaks out between

japan and America, Britain will declare war on Japan 'within

the hour'. The United sta.teﬁ 1s preparing to withdraw the

to rail at Britain and the United States.”

Now on December 1st, & similar first paragraph:

"Unless the Japanese request continuance of the con-
versations, the Japanese-American negotiations have virtually
sroken down. The Japanese Government and press are proclalim-
ing loudly that the nation must carry on resolutely the work
ne buildiné the Greater East Asia co-prosperity sphere. The
press also is criticising Thailand severely. Strong indi-
cations point to an early Japanese advance against Thailand.

"Relations between Japan and Russia remained strained.
Japan signed a 5-year extension of the anti-comintern pact
gith Germany and other Axis nations on November 25,"

Those were the diplomatic advices that were hirniuhod
%e Admiral Kimmel, which are a brief summary of the status
«f negotiations.

Senator Brewster: You would reoogni'ze, would you not,
pdmiral, that there are very substantial gaps in those
sumarieﬁ , necessarily perhaps, as_oomparod to the information
available here in Washington?

Admiral Wilkinson: Certainly. I mean the fact of the
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Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Senator Brewster

Gispatch of the 10-point note from us and the receipt of
the Japanese reply was not in it.

Senator Ferguson: There was the conspicuous incident
of the charting of the waters of Pearl Harbor, which wvas the
dispatch of September 24, translated on October 9, and
which I believe they indicated was not communicated to Admiral
Rimmel at Pearl Harbor.

Is that your recollection?

Admiral Wilkinson: That is my recollection.

Senator Brewster: With those things in mind, Admiral,

{ am somewhat puzzled by this statement in your report of
Jlecember 19, 1941, - which was, of course, very near to the
gvent, - and I quote from that report -- I do not know whether
vuls has been put in evidence as an exhibiﬁ or not. It is

A memorandum for the Chief of Naval Operations from Admiral
Wilkinson on December 19, 1941.

Do you know whether that is in evidence?

Mr. Gesell: It is not, Senator. I think, if that is
the memorandum given to us, it summarizes a report or reports
on his testimony before the Roberts Board.

Senator Brewster: That is right.

Mr. Gesell: That is not in evidence.

Mr. Breuster: The subject is the proceedings of the

President’s Investigating Committee, December 19, 1941.

\
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Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Senator Brewster

\

This wvas & report from Admiral Wilkinson, reporting his
testimony before the so-called Roberts Commission, to whom
1@ stated on page 3, "The cww in Chief Pacific had as
rash information as we had, but I myself could not expect
that he and his staff would infer positively & zja.id on Hawaill
¢ny more than we had been able to do from the same information.”

That would not be a sorrect statement of the gituation,
would it, Admiral?

Admiral Wilkinson: I think if you will read the preceding
two sentences, sir, it will make it clearer.

"on the evidence available we had concluded on Deoemher
int that the Japanese were contemplating an early attack,
primarily directed at Thailand, Burma and the Malay Peninsula,
and subsequent developments had provod this to be true. We
wad not been able to obtaln intelligence or to develop by
1nference any indicatlon of & raid on Hawall. The Commander
in Chief Pacific had as much ini'ormation as'we had, but I
myself could not expect that he and his staff would infer
positively a raid on Hawalil any more than we had been able
50 do from the same information."

Perhaps that is not correct in that }:he earlier dispatches
:nd not been relayed to him specifically.

senator Brewster: Would not it be a matter of concern,

and a matter of considerable interest or significance to the

e el i at.ailht - cadh i b -M’._nr.n ;..._.,'.'*_tu-l o
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enti+s Fleet at Pearl Harbor to know that the enemy were
nopping the location of the Fleet day by day, by five sectors

+» Pearl Harbor? Would not it mean more to the Commander in

 Pearl Harbor than to anyone here in Washington who was less

iwmedilately concerned? \
Admirel Wilkinson: Certainly it would be of more immediate
epplication to him. |
Senator Bret:rstar: Yes.
Admiral Wilkinson: He was well aware that the Fleet
vas under constant observation from the surrounding hills.
Senator Brewster: Yes. :
Admiral Wilkinson: And that the reports were being ma.da
as to them. Whether the geographical designation of the areas
by sectors would mean more to him or not I cannot say. Probably
it would, yes.
Senator Brewster: If you had been in command of that
Fleet you would probably lie awake at night trying to figure
out just what the significance of that was, would you not?
Aduiral Wilkinson; Might well have.

Senator Brewster: Now here in Washington you haed reports

. from all over, you had the whole world view, you hed Manila,

you hed all the other departments coming in here, and while

you were naturally concerned, you were not immediately re-

sponeible for the safety of thet Fleet, so it might well tsake




AL-11

Hook

foll

M INvyd § QHYM

2 qa 'HO.LQNISV

t

10

I3

1t

'
'

i

|

Witness Wilkinson

4847
Questions by: Senator Brewster

up less of your thought and attention and consideration,
I can well understand, than it would in the hands of Admiral
Kimmel. That is probably a fair stﬁtmnt, is 1t not?

Admiral Wilkinson: Yes, sir.

Senator Brewster: So that in the 1light of what we now
know 1t cortainly'ﬁroved unféftunate that 1£ did not prove
practical to send in some more information re@.rdj.ng the
developments that were going on?

Admiral Wilkinson: Yes, sir. That again was a question
of the security of the code, of which we were becoming in-

creasingly concerned.
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Senator Brewster: In future situations of this char-
hctew,thé lessons which we have learned from this will un-
doubtedly have a substantiel bearing on the conduct of our
rrmed Services, our Intelligence, and our entire arrange-
ments, I assume,

Admirel Wilkinson: I hope so, sir, I hope we profit
by aldiine Sagdons GFf Hhervaw:

Senator Brewster: I think that is the only Jjustifica-
tion of this investigation, as & matter of fact.

Admirsel Wilkinson: Yes, sir.

Senator Brewster: One other thing which I did not
follow quite through 1s the matter of the Fleet.

Speeking to you now as a Naval officer of long expéri-
ence, when you spoke of the Fleet at Pearl Harbor, the
American Fleet as being inferlior tothe Japanese, you meant
in the relative strength of battleships, destroyers, carriers,
the entire component of the fleet? |

Admirsl Wilkinson: Including the Naval Alr Force,
yes, sir, That 1s discounting any superiority of train-
ing and materiel, in which we hoped we were a liftle better
off.

‘SenatofrBrewster: Yes. Ié it not also true that the

powef of the fleet increased proportionately to 1ts moving

from its base?
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pAdmiral Wiltkinson: Yes.

Senator Brewster: As I remember Admiral Leahy, his

|
R
'

' testimony before us in 1938, when we were considering

. expanding the Navy, he estimated we would need a superiority

|| .

| of approximately two to one in order to move into the

!|r

1\1 Western Pacific, and take up the Japanes on equal terms.

That involved communication lines and everything else.

Admiral Wilkinson: I think that is more than & falr

i statement, and when we did finally move into the Western
l
|

I Pacific in this war, we were more than two to one.

li: genator Brewster: ©So when you speak of the Fleet as

' being inferior, our Fleet belng inferior, you compared the

' values side by side, rather than the fact that there was

!

.

! pour or five thousand miles of water that we had to cover.

|
|
| pdmirel Wilkinson: Yes, sir, a direct comparison.

Senator Brewster: It is probably useless to contem-

;plate, except as it assists us in this lesson, but the price
E at Pearl Harbor was not only the price we paid at Pearl
|
 Harbor that day but all the way on from Guadalcanal to
!Leyte, and even Okinawa, was 1t not, in the mgter of the
5 depletion of our navel strength?

Perhaps I should confine it now to Guadalcanal, where
we went‘ to fight on a shoestring, to stop the Japs because

we had to stop them right then.
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h3 - pdmirel Wilkinson: I was thinking, Senator, that of

| course we could not say what the course of the war might

| have been. We might have gone out of Pearl Harbor with
. I what we had in an attempt to relieve the Philippines, which

might well have been disastrous in view of the Japanese

l
G
‘

” islands and air filelds, and the challenge we wquld have

-l
-

a met from the Japanese fleet.
g h The temporary losses at Pearl Harbor, and of course
o | -the actually complete losses of two battleships, undoubtedly

i |} reduced for a time the ratio and we had to walt until that

2 | ratio was restored and increased before we could success-
12 || fully conduct the campalgn in the Western Pacific. It 1s
i possible if our losses hed not bzen incurred in Pearl Harbor,

15 other losses might have resulted subsequently, and that

D O 'NOLONIHSYM "INvd § AU

10 those losses might have been more permanent, not readlly

17 restored.

16 T cannot say what it may have been in the course of

. —— -

15 ' the wvan,
Senator Brewster: Well, after this initial upset,

we did demonstrate a cepacity to beat the Japanese on almost

22 | any terms from then on. We had no serious surprises, no

oo { serious upsets in our procedure from then on.

24 |} Adamirel Wilkinson: No, sir. The first campalgn in

+he South Pacific, in the vicinity of Guadalcanal, was

e 2 ’ ] s " ' . o
‘ini =i I e Bl & .k i Lew Tl 'l l—.i ln‘.l-d' ---‘.b---lnu “Iln‘ﬁu
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ritness Wilkinson

i pretty tough fighting. Our losses were heavy, and so vere

|
| the Jeps' losses, we hope, but thereafter we began to

|

‘ have disproportionate losses, comparing the Jap losses

with ours.
1
| Senator Brewster: I think it i1s proper to speak of

[ ]
L ]
I

' 1t now. It is my understanding that in the Naval Affairs

Sommittee I think Admiral Stark, or Admiral King -- Admiral

King I think testified that we had to go into Guadalcanal

W — —
- - -

to stop it; we could not let the Japs go any further, so

| it was a calculated risk that we felt obliged to take.

Admirel Wilkinson: Yes, sir.

| Senator Brewster: Not because we felt 1t was necessar-
| 11y easy or feasible, but it just had to be done with

‘nsufficient forces because of the losses at Pearl Harbor.

Admiral Wilkinson: Yes, sir.

e — . — —

Senator Brewster: Is that right?

Admiral Wilkinson: In part. The ships that were dis-
‘ abled at Pearl Harbor, the older battleships, would have
%been strong units in the South Pacific, but they would not
iha.ve been particularly well adapted to some of the fighting
' there which required faster vessels. .

F' Senator Brewster: Yes.

Admirel Wilkinson: Our greatest difficulty, as I

recall, in the earlier days of the war, was the lack of

e I i e e L ™. .-‘?'-’JI.- & fhu'l i al & o ‘IJ & & i - = a8 .l-..- -1.-..III b e e i ol seil 5 1
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' Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Senator Brewster

- carriers, and of course there were no carriers affected

at Pearl Harbor.

Senator Brewster: The estimated losses -- I recall

= = - -

getting this at that time from Admiral Stark -- the losses

incident at Pesrl Harbor, it was estimated at that time

- — b —

had set us back a year. Did you hear such estimates at
- that time?

| Admirel Wilkinson: I defer to his judgment. I made

no such estimate.

! 3enator Brewster: It would be true that if the Fleet

;had remained in being, with the augmentations in the ensuing

| 12 months, our progress both in the South Pacific and in

| West Pacific could have been that much more rapid, because

of the strength which we would have had if we did not en-

|
counter these losses, don't you think so?

Admirel Wilkinson: I should say so, unless we had under-
 teken an expedition for the relief of the Philippines in

Ethe crisis that was developing there before we were pre-

| .
' pared for 1it, in which case, of course, we might have had

Lheavy losses there, and then been worse off than we were

]
"
+
®

' $0 begin with.

Senator Brewster: I quite appreciate that, That is,

iif the Japs had not sunk these ships at Pearl Harbor, public

Opinion might have been for a relief expedition, although

! - Risiy

T il . olieE s Ll L e G TR IO ‘ - L
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- when I was at Pearl Harbor in 1940, the standing joke

hetween the Army and Navy at that time was that the fellows
in the Philippines were Just out of luck, that we were

not going to relieve them. There seemed to be a rather

~ Joviel aspect to it. The poor fellows were supposed to

hold out for six months when they knew the Fleet, very well,

was not coming, because it did not have the strength to

go into the Western Pscific until it had the two to one

guperiority to the Japs, which it 4id not have. Did you

ever hear such discusslons?

Admiral Wilkinson: Yes. Not authoritatively, not in
the sense that they were definitely doomed, but that it was
difficult to relieve them.

3enator Brewster: I refer to the Captalns, not the

top command, I refer to the boys down the line who felt

- they were up against it.

I think that 1s all that I have.
The Vice Chalirmen: Mr. Gearhart of Cslifornia will

inquire.
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Mr. Gearhart: Admiral Wilkinson, during the course of

your examination by the gentleman from Pennsylvania you

t pointed out certain advantages that the Fleet had in the
r: harbor at the time of the surprise attack. One of them was
that it vas practically protected from submarine attack. And
| I think you also pointed out that when the ahips vere sunk

|| they were sunk in shallow vater and you were able to later

paise them.

You did not mean to imply that that was a good place
; to have the Fleet if we had been under any impression that
| an attack was to occur, did you?
Admiral Wilkinson: No, sir. I think I was asked in
fact whether, as to the contx;aat between Pearl Harbor and
1ahaina Roads, whether the fact that the water was shallow
in Pearl Harbor and ships were recovered would not have made
Lahaina a worse place to be if a similar attack with similar
effects had taken place, and I think my answer was yes.
l I did not of myself, I believe, say I would prefer the
' ships stay in Pearl Harbor.
Mr. Gearhart: As a matter of fact as they were lashed
together in pairs and in line, that very arrangement of
things reduced their fighting capacity, didn't it?

Admiral Wilkinson: It reduced their ability to get

- S W i a

| out and reduced the arc of fire of the guns of the 1nner

{)
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Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Mr. Gearhart

Mr. Gearhart: Prevented all maneuverability?

Admiral Wilkinson: The single ship would be unmaneuverable _'
as long as it was tied up. The effect of tying them together
was to delay the exit from the harbor in case of necessity
of the inner ship and also it massed the guns, the inboard
guns, the guns toward each other of the two ships lying side
by side.

Mr. Gearhart: Yes.

. In the event that Admiral Kimmel and General Short had

received information that an attack was imminent, within the

harbor at all, would they?
Admiral Wilkinson: Depending on the time of advance

notice he got.
Mr. Gearhart: If he had gotten advance notice he would

have gotten them out of the harbor as fast as he could?

Admiral Wilkinson; My impression is that he would. I
can’t speak for his mind.

Mr. Gearhart: As a matter of fact they presented & very,
very enticing target to the Japanese in the position in which
they vere moored, did they not?

Admiral Wilkinson: Very much so. That, of course, was

o cheracteristic of the limited mooring in the harbor for
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deep draft vessels. There vere not many places we could

; put them.

Mr. Gearhart: Admiral, you were &a vitﬁou before the
Hewitt inquiry?

Admiral Wilkinson: Yes, s8ir.

Mr. Gearhart: That occurred in Washington sometime ]
subsequent to the 2nd of May of 1945 and the month of August i |

of 1945, did it not?

Admiral Wilkinson: It occurred, I think, in June, early

- - - Y
a— TS

June, 1945,

Mr. Gearhart: I will ask you if in that hearing, during
the course of that hearing, the following questions were not
asked you and to which you gave the following answers --
question by Mr. Sonnett:

"as to the dissemination of information, Admiral, outside

of the Navy Department and to the Pacific Fleet, do I take

- -

it then that it was the responsibility of the ONI to disseminate |
information on the Japanese situation to the Pacific Fleet?"

Ansver by Vice Admiral Wilkinson:

"Phat point was never fully determined. We issued the
reports and the bi-weekly summary of the situation but I
was told that the deductions of future movements were the
function of the War Plans rather than of Intelligence, and

this understanding was confirmed by the Assistant Chief of
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Oporé.t:loﬁs » Admiral Ingersoll, wvhen at ocne time I said that

I thought it was our responsibility. He told me at that time
that the Army system was for Intelligence to prepare the
analyses of the enemy's prospective movements, but in the
Navy system the War Plans did that.

"I told him then that I would prepare that analysis myself
in my office in order that War Plans and the Chief of Naval
Operations might use it as they saw fit, and in consequence
such analyses as I made weren'’t transmitted to the Fleet but
were glven to the Chief of Operations and to the War Plans.

"The same with respect to spot news of the enemy movements.
My understanding at the time was, and still is, that I would
report to the War Plans and the Chief of Naval Operations the
latest operational information deduced from all sources and
that they would forward to the Fleet such items as they felt
should be forwarded. |

"Mr. Sonnet: Would it be an accurate summary theén,
Admiral, to state that information in the possession of the
Office of Naval Intelligence concerning the Japaneae' moveménta,
for example, would be disseminated by ONI but the evaluation
of the Japanese plans or deductions to be drawn from these
movements would be the function of Wé.r Plans or the Chief of

Naval Operations?"

Ansver by Vice Admiral Wilkinson:

b ; ! - '
e 7l Y v i h e bl g theate aladd g S b o :u-z.......‘:.Lm.-'
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"The latter part of your question, yes. The first
part, the day by day information or Japanese movements would
not, according to my than.a.nd present understanding, be sent
out by Intelligence, but rather by Operations after their
evaluation.” I

I will ask you if those questions were asked and 1if
those answers constituted the answers you gave to those
questions at that time?

Admiral Wilkinson: To my recollection, yes.

Mr. Gearhart; At the time you gave those answers 1in
1945, in June 1945, did you recall or did you have in mind
the provisions of Schedule of Organizations, a schedule which
bears the date of 23 October 1940, a schedule which I under-
stand was in effect in 19417

Admiral Wilkinson: I had those in mind as modified by
the instructions that had been turned over to me by my
predecessor and that had been confirmed by my conversation
with Admiral Ingersoll to which I testified, I believe,
yesterday.

Mr. Gearhart: The document Schedule of Organizations,
is in the nature of a regulational order, is it not?

‘Admiral ﬁilkinson: Yes, sir.

Mr. Gearhart: Well, your understanding is quite

contrary to what the Schedule of Organizations required and
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Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Mr. Gearhart

recited; is that not correct?

Admiral Wilkinson: The Schedule of Organizations vas
prepared and issued by the Chief of Naval Operations. It was
subject to change by him orally or otherwise. It had been
changed orally by him to Admiral Kirk. It had been changed orall:
by Admiral Ingersoll, his assistant, and speaking for him, to '
me .

I considered that the change had been made orally and
did not }equire the textual change in writing.

Mr. Gearhart: Now, are you giving hearsay evidence in
reference to verbal changes by Admiral Stark, or are you
reciting your own information received from the 1lips of
Admiral Stark? |

Admiral Wilkinson: I am giving the hearsay information
received officially from my predecessor, and I am giving you
information received from Admiral Stark’s first assistant,
Admiral Ingersoll, who spoke forihim.

Mr. Gearhart: Now, regardless of that, the schedule
of organizations provides that, in respect to both foreign
and domestic intelligence, that the ONI should"evaluate the
information collected and disseminate aé advisable" ?

Admiral Wilkinson: Yes. -

-'. . J.-_..'_Ir-"-'l.- - ﬁ'i;-- . I'Jm--hl -Ji—- e s il aleaml a i & ‘I-A-_..AM l.-.i‘dh‘i.*lﬁh
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Mr. Gearhart: All right.
T find in the correspondence & letter dated 18

february, 1941 from Admiral Kimmel %o Admiral Stark, to

which there 1s appended a postscript, which I will read:

"T have recently been told by an officer fresh from

+0 furnish the Commander in Chief vith the information of

' a secret nature. I have heard also that Operations considera

it responai'bla for furnishing the same type of information to

' that of ONI. I do not know that we have missed anything

!

wut if there is any doubt as to whose responsibility it

| is to keep the Commender in Chief fully informed with perti-

nent reports on subjects that should be of interest to the

i Fleet, will you kindly fix that responsibility so that

' there will be no misunderstanding?"

|
| I also find Admiral Stark’s answer to Admirel Kimmel,

dated 22 March, 1941, in vwhich he says:
! Mmrith reference to your postscript on the subject of

. Japanese trade routes and responsibility for the furnishing

of secret information to the Commander 1in Chief of the

0 - - -

- Pacific, Kirk informs me that ONI is fully aware of its

responsibility in keeping you adequately informed concerning

-_— o - -

foreign nations, activities of these nations, and disloyal

elements within the United States. He mrther says that
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 information concerning the location of all Japanese merchant

ships is forwarded by airmsil weekly to you, and that if

7ou wish this informetion can be issued more directly or

i zent by dispatch.”

I also find a memorandum for the Chief of Naval Opera-

| tions, dated March 11, 1941, signed A. G. Kirk, from the

0ffice of Naval Intelligence, which is apperently the basis

- for Admiral Starkis answer to the postscript of Admiral ,
|

Ximmealis letter in which i1t is stated:

-

"}, The Division of Naval Intelligence is fully aware

that it 1s the responsibility of this division to keep the

Commander in Chief, Pacific Fleet, adequestely informed con-
cerning foreign nations, activities of these nations, and

disloyel elements within the United States."

-
T TR — R -l-'-"--

Now, with those letters in mind, I will ask you, first,

. the A. G. Kirk that signed the memorandum of March 11, 19&1,

to the Chief of Navael Operstions, was then Director of

i Naval Intelligence? L /

Admiral Wilkinson: Yes, sir.

- e e N ——— o —

Mr. Gearhart: That is the position you later held?

Admiral Wilkinson: I relieved him directly.

Mr. Gearhart: When you became Chief of Neval Opera-

|
h tions, did Admirel Kirk inform you of that correspondence

iT‘:;etmeua-n Admiral Hart and Admiral Kimmel and of his memorandum

r
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. which was sent around?
Admiral Wilkinson: Not specificelly.

Mr. Gearhart: When you talked with Admiral Ingersoll,

the Assistant Chief of Naval Operations, as you testified
I

in the Hewitt inquiry, and told Admiral Ingersoll in effect

[}

!

|
| that you thought it was your function to evaluate end dis-

seminate the intelligence, did you find and give him these

. Drecedents to support your position?

Admiral Wilkinson: No.

Mr. Gearhart: Did you ever discuss the subject with
~your senior subordinates in the office?

Admiral Wilkinson: Frequently.
; Mr. Gearhart : Some of them had been on duty much
longer than you had, had they not?

Adniral Wilkinson: Yes, sir,

- e e el e —

Mr. Gearhart: Did any of thém recall to you the memoran-
| dum of Admiral Kirk?
| Admiral Wilkinson: I do not recell that they did, end

|

' do not believe they did, sir. I think it was generally

' understood that we had the responsibility and I accepted
'1t, of keeping the forces afloat, including the Commander
‘Ein Chief, Pacific, of all information, informed of all in-

P! formation except that which through our instructions, was

liu

spacifically excepted, and if I may I will read my answer

- - - I ' » - L] I - — ¥ &
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of yesterday:

| "I sald that the text of the ragulations which you

Introduced read feveluate the information collected and
disseminate as advisable.!

"I understood our duties to be, and still understand,

tion, what General Miles had termsd static inforuation,

such as the defenses of the country, 1ts economics, the

-

diplomatic relations, the characteras and activities and

; brevious careers of its military and naval men, the loca-

- -

~tion of its fleets, the actual movements of its fleets

and everything other than the enemy's probeble intentions,

- and such specific information as in itself might give

rise or might require action by our fleet or by our naval

=

forces,

. sult higher authority, either the Assistant Chief, the’

|
I
| Chief of Naval Operations, or my colleague, Chief of War

¥
.

|

L]
]

fnaval sltuetion, and the opsretions for which he wvas respon-

!
| Plans, in order that this information that I sent out

would not be in conflict with his understanding of the

| sible. "

That is the end of my answer, sir,

— S e e

I will explain further that 1t would ocbviously be

| 0 disseminste anid spread abroad all types of basic informa-

"In the latter case, before dissemination, I would con-

& ' I i . - " - " , ' ot
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nd. . | undesirable for me to send out information wh:l.éh on its

- receipt would cause the Commander in Chief to take such

{

| action as would be in conflict with the action which was

' desired by the responsible officer in the Department for
|
( é? War Plans.

f :
- | Mr. Gearhart: And still Admiral Kirk issues a

|

a memorandum in which he says that it is his responsibility

n | and we have also in the rascord that Admiral Stark says

v | 1t was the responsibility of ONI.

|

It Admiral Wilkinson: I think that last sentence of

Admiral Kirk's is not as all-embracing as you would have it

—
A .

B be, if you would mind reading it again, sir, the last part

i+ || of Admiral Kirk's letter.

15 Mr, Gearhart: Well, Admiral Kirk says:

:
!

16| "The Division of Naval Intolligonco is fully aware

f
17 | that 1t is the responsibility of this Division to keep

i

11 4,* the Commander in Chief, Pacific Fleet adequately informed

< O 'ROLONIHSY/M "INyd § QHYM

E concerning foreign nations, aot:l.vitioa of thesemtions,

-0 |l and disloyal elements within the United States."

l Admiral Wilkinson: Yes, sir.

. ’ Mr. Gearhart: That is pretty definite, isn't 1t?
; Let's pursue it a little further. It is an interest-

24 ! ing subject.
i

Admirsel Wilkinson: All right.

el
|
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- Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Mr. Gearhart

letter from Admiral Kimmel, Chief of Neval Operations,
dated 26 May, 1941, entitled "Survey of Conditions in the

- He is as a rule not informed as to the policy or change

 and as a result is unable to eveluate the possible effect

T T —— e — —

 E— = — s —— - — e

e T —

Mr, Gearhart: I find among the correspondence a

Pacific Fleet."

In this letter there appears under Title VII, "Informa-
tion:"

"Information.

“(a) The Commander in Chief, Pacific Fleet is in a
very difficult position. He is far removed from the seat

of government in a complex end rapidly changing situation.
of policy rarlected in current events and naval movements,

upon his own situation. He is not even sure of what force
will be avallable to him and has 1little voice in matters
radically affecting his ebility to carry out his assigned
tasks, This lack of information is disturbing and tends
to create' uncertainty, a condition which directly contravenes
that singleness of purpose and confidence in some course of
actlon so nscessary to the conduct of military eperations.

"It is realized that on occasion thé rapid develop-

‘ment in the internationsl picture » both diplomatic and

}
|
|
;
|

military, and perhaps even the lack of knowledge of the

Milltary eauthorities themselves, may militate against the

=

B £ saec ot LSl
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- Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Mr. Gearhart

- — -

furnishing of timely information, but certainly the pre-

sent situation is susceptible to marked improvement. Full

" and authoritative knowledge of current policies and objec-

S —

'~ tives even though necessarily late at times, would enable

the Commander in Chief, Pacific Fleet, to modify, adapt,
or even reorient his pou:l:ble course of action to oohrom
to cun;ent concepts. This is particularly appli'oa.ble to
the current Pacific situation where thé necessity for
intensive training of a partially trained fleet must be
carefully balanced against the debility of this training
by strategic dispositions or otherwise to meet impending
eventualities.

"Moreover, due to this same factor of distance and
time, the Department itself is not too well informed as
to the local situation, particularly with regard to the
status of current outlying island developments, thus
making it even more necessary that the Commander in Chief
Pacific Fleet be guided by broad policy and objectives
rather than by categorical instructions.

"It is suggested that it be made a cardinel principal

- that the Commander in Chief, Pacific Fleet, be immediately
- informed of all important developments as they occur, and

by the quickest secure means available."

Did you see this letter after you arrived and assumed
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: Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Mr. Gearhart
h8 , || the duties as Director of Naval Intél]_.igonoe?
3 Admirel Wilkinson: No, sir. I am not sure that
2 l Admiral Kirk saw 1t.
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Questions by: Mr. Gearhart

VWitness Wilkinson

Mr. Gearhart: I find that Admiral Stark testified
before the Naval Court of Inquiry, and I quote his testimony:

"vou considered the letter Exhibit 33 so good, did you
not, Admiral Stark, that you caused it to be reproduced and
distributed in a restricted area upon its receipt among im-
portant offices in the Navy Department?”

Ansver:
"Yes. It was our general custom to do that and I
mimeographed this, sent it to all hands who vere concerned,
followed it up and, as I recall, assembled all concerned for

Admiral Kimmel to talk to himself in my office.”

Did you see the mimeographed copy that Admiral Stark,
according to his testimony, had prepared and distributed to
the Navy Department?

Admiral Wilkinson: No, sir..
Mr. Gearhart: Did Admiral Stark mention this letter to
you after you assumed your duties?

Admiral wWilkinson: No, sir.
‘Mr. Gearhart: I find that Admiral Stark testified further

before the Naval Court of Inquiry in respect to this letter,

- and I quoteg

"Have you any comment on the last sentence in the last

paragraph of 7?7

Ansver:
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"Pbout being guided by broad policy and ob jectives
rather than by categorical instructions? I have just covered
that. You mean the next paragraph?"

nyes:"

Ansver:

"(Reading). 'It is suggested that it be made a cardinal
principle that the Commander in Chief Pacific Fleet .be {immed-
lately Informed of all important developments as they ocour
and by the quickest secure means available.! I was in complete
concurrence with him on that and that was one of my objectives,
yes."

"You agreed with Admiral Kimmel then that the Commander
in Chief of the Pacific Fleet should be, insofar as you were
able, immediately informed of all important developments as
they ococurred, and by the quickest secure means available?

"Yes." ' |

Did Admiral Stark tell you after you became Director of
Naval Intelligence that cune of his ob jectiveﬁ was that the
Commander in Chief Pacific Fleet be immediately informed of
2ll important developments as they occurred by the quickest
secure means? |

Admiral Wilkinson: Not to my recollection.

Mr. Gearhart: I find in the correspondence a letter

from Admirel Kimmel to Admiral Stark dated 26 July 1941 --

APV IRV PR WITERT TR TS AR BT M R
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Questions by: Mr. Gearhart

by the way, when did you become Director?

Admiral Wilkinson: 15 October 1941.
Mr. Gearhart: This is a quotation of Admiral Stark --

pardon me, it is a quotation from Admiral Kimmel’s letter to
Admiral Stark of July 26, 1941:
"y. The importance of keeping the Commander in Chief

advised of department policies and decisions and the changes

- T —

in policy and decisions to meet the changes in the internmational
situation.”

Sub-paragraph a:

"We have as yet received no official information as to
the United States attitude toward Russie’s participation in
the war, partiou;.a.rly as to the degree of operation, if any,
in the Pacific between the United States and Russia, if and
when wve become active participants. Presén‘l'; plans do not
1nclude Russia and do not provide for coordinated action,
joint use of bases, jolint communications systems, and the like.

The new situation opens up possibilities flor us vhich may be

‘fully explored#**" and so on.

Then Admiral Kimmel asked a number of questions:
"y111 England declare war on Japan."
The answer to 1 is in the affirmative -- and so on.

He asked all the questions possible about the situation |

which might develop in the Pacific. ~

\l
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Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Mr. Gearhart

Did you know anything about that long letter that he
wrote to Admiral Stark?

Admiral Wilkinson: I do not know, sir. I think normally
that would be prepared in the diviai?n of War Plans which has
cognizance of the plans you speak of, whether there was
coordination between Russia and America, and so on. Anything
with regard to our own participation or the participation of
other nations in conjunction with us.

Mr. Gearhart: Your answer is Interesting in view of
Admiral Stark'!s answer to Admiral Kimmel, from which I will
quote. His letter vas dated August 19, 1941. That is getting
oretty close up to your tenure, is it not? I will quote
8 portion:

"I can readily understand your wish to be kept informed
as to the department policies and decisions and the changes
thereto which must necessarily be made to meet the ohanges
in the international situation. This we are trying to do, and
i1f you do not get as much information as you think you should
get the answer probably is that the situation which is upper-
most in your mind has just not jelled auffioiently for us to
give you anything authoritative."

Evidéntly Admiral Stark thought that that re'aponaibility

was ONI's, didn’t he?

Admiral Wilkinson: No, sir. I should say that a

\
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Questions by: Mr. Gearhart

situation wvhich has not jelled is a matter for the State

Department, a matter of international relations. As I heard

you, and I may not have understood it, that was a question

of a fluid situation, an international situation.

Mr. Gearhart:

that the organizational order of ONI didn't mean what it said

Then I understand that you still believe

during your tenure as Director of the 0ffice of Naval In-

telligence?

Admiral Wilkinson:

Tt meant, as I interpreted it, and

as it had been amended to me yerbaliy, and as I mentioned

yesterday, there was one whole paragraph with regard to the

Division of Public Relations which viewed as it stood would

give us authority and jnstructions as to what to do with

Public Relations, they had been completely lifted out of my

office, but the order of over a year's standing had not been

amended, but there was no order, and I don't know that one

7as required to show textual changes in each order every

time a directive of any sort was issued in modification of it,

whether that directive was in text or orally.

Mr. Gearhart: Did Admiral Stark ever call you in and

tell you that you should disregard the Schedule of Organizations

in respect to the evaluation of information collected and of

disseminating it as was deemed advisable?

Admiral Wilkinson: I never asked Admiral Stark that.

\
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1 had the word from my predecessor and I confirmed it by
instructions from Admiral Stark's responsible assistant.

Mr. Gearhart: Did Admiral Kirk tell you to disregard
his memorandum which he had issued just a short time before
to the contrary effect?

Admiral Wilkinson: I don't consider the, memorandum 18
to the contrary effect, sir, 1f you speak of that letter which
you read to me, because that is a broad and all-embracing
program, and what he told me was specific orders he had re-
ceived from Admiral Stark which he stated had been recelved
in the presence of Admiral Ingersoll and Admiral Turner.

Mr. Gearhart: Well now, to quote his memorandum again --
there is no use disregarding its import --

Admiral Wilkinson: No, 8ir, except .1;t is very broad.

Mr. Gearhart: (Reading)

"yavel Intelligence is fully aware it is the responsi-
bility of this Division to keep the Commander in Chief Pacific
Fleet adequately informed concerning foreign nations, activities
of these nations, and disloyal elements within the United
States."

Did Admiral Kirk ever tell you to dis_rega.rd that memorandum:

Admiral Wilkinson: That 1s a very broad ;fatomnt.
There were limitations and modifications to it such as I

mentioned. Admiral Kirk never told me of the memorandum 1tself

- -

.
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Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Mr. Gearhart

and, as I mentioned, T never saw the memorendum, but I do
recognize that in the broad sense that is the rosponnibility
of the office, as it may have been amended bY instructions
»eceived from higher authority, which I mentioned, sir.

Mr. Gearhart: Then I will ask you, Admiral Wilkinson,
wvhy didn't you transmit the 1nformtion that was contained
in the intercepts to Admiral Kimmel, Commander in Chief of
the Pacific Fleet, when the information pointed directly to
Hawaii?

Admiral Wilkinson: The information contained in those
intercepts pointed to many gources.

Mr. Gearhart: I am not talking about the ones that
pointed to Panama or the ones that pointed to any other place,
but the ones that pointeﬁ directly to Hawail. Was not 1t
your duty to transmit the information contained 1in 1nte_roepts'
that reached your desk which did point directly to Hawail
and did evidence an inordinate interest by the Japaneseé in
sonditions which exlsted on oahu Island?

Admiral Wilkinson: We did not, perhaps erroneously,

recognize that that was an jnordinate interest in Hawail.

| ‘we had found inquires and reports of similar investigations

in many ports. We considered that those were part, as 1

We did not send this to the Commander in Chief, partly in

=i 2 LWL o

have said, of the degree of nicety of the Japanese Intelligence. ‘
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error, perhaps we didn't recognize it pointed specifically

. %o an attack on Hawaii, and partly also because we were very

| jealous at that time of the security of the code and the

. I, fact that we were breaking the code, as Senator Brewster has

i
¢ | mentioned they were already suspicious that we were attacking
. l the code, and we continued to discourage that suspicion.
|
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Questions by: Mr. Gearhart

Witness Wilkinson

Mr. Gearhart: There were some intercepts which reached
your desk which indicated on the part of the Japanese an
| 4nordinate interest in conditions existing in Panama?
Admiral Wilkinson: Yes, sir.
Mr. Gearhart: Did you inform the Commanding General

|
and the Commending Admiral at Panama?

Admiral Wilkinson: No, sir,

Mr. Gearhart: Of those messages?

Admiral Wilkinson: No, sir.,

Mr.- Gearhart: Now, they were of a special concern
to the commanders at Panama?

Admiyal ﬁ:llkinaon: Yes, sir,

Mr. Gearhart: Why did you not give them that specific
| information which pointed their way?
Admiral Wilkinson: It wes well known that a great

! deal of espionage activity was gbin.g on throughout all of

| our coastal areas, and our island possessions. That Iinforma-

tién as to those espionage activities was known and sent
by the Office of Naval Intelligence to the District Intel-

ligence officers located in those various ports. That

information which they received, plus that which we col-
lected on the spot, was conveyed to the local commander in

every instance. The Commander in Chief of Hawall, the

Naval Commander in Panama, the Commander in Chief of Manila,

1 -‘ 4 ’I . -
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Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Mr. Gearhart

vere all aware that their forces were under constant
espionage. They were so avare because of the activities

J

of the Intelligence agencies, and our own representatives
there.
These messages that you speak of, which pointed to

| the desire for information in those various ports, were
| .

of themselves but confirmatory of the espionage activities
vhich vere already kmown and which were constantly being

kept before the commanders.

Mp. Gearhart: Well, the situation still remains
that you had information, very much definite information

vhich you did not transmit to the commanders in the fileld

that were in command in the areas, that the in® rmation you

I
| had related to.

l Admirel Wilkinson: That infqrmation was little more
I

| than what they hed through their own intelligence agencieﬁ 7

I Mr. Congressman, They were aware that they were the

subject of constant espionege, that the result of that

|| espionage was being transmitted back to Japan. We knew

that photographs were being taken of the Fleet in Hawalil.
 In fact, we endeavored to secure a law to prevent the taking
of photographs and were unsuccessful, and the commanders of

the Fleet were aware of that, all of that.

The specific inquiry es to the division of Fearl Rarbor

i)
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I officers to the Naval Commangers in all of these ports,

Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Mr. Gearhart

| areas was another refinement on that intelligence, a refine-

ment which we perhaps should have recognized as indicating

a possible attack.
| It would also be indicated similarly elsewhere, but

the fact that a comprehensive espionage was being carried

on vas, I think, known through the district intelligence '

and I know that the time I was in Hawall, that we were

cognizant of that fact, and we were helpless to stop 1t.
We could not censor the malls. We could not censor

the dispatches. We could not prevent the taking of photo-

graphs. We could not arrest Japanese suspects. There vas

nothing we could do to stop it, and all hands knew that
esl;iona.ge vas going on all along, and reports were going
back to J_apan. |

Mr. Gearhart: My dear sir, don't you think that you
vere assuming a tremendous responsibility in deciding in
your mind wvhat Admiral Kimmel knew and what the Admiral
- in command E.t Panema knew?

| Admiral Wilkinson: No, sir. I think that from the

i reports thaet we had sent to our district intelligence officers

| and those returned by them, we knew they were acquainted

with the espionage. But these particular messages, indicating
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| as 1t has been said, a bombing plan, were not sent out in
| view of the attempts at security of the code breeking

apparatus, code breaking process that we were then main-
| teining.
Mr. Gearhart: In view of the fact that Admiral Kimmel

wvas writing to Admiral Sterkfor information, begging for

information almost monthly or ireekly, don't you think he

was entitled to know that a Japenese intercept had disclosed
that the Japanese had divided Oshu into filve areas, and
that the Japanese were demsnding end their confederates on
that island were reporting day by day on the movements of
ships into and out of Pearl Harbor, -- don't you think that
that was information Admirel Kimmel was entitled to have?

Admiral Wilkinsong With the exception of a division

D .0 MOTOMWVIMZAW . JUAN @ ORAW

of Pearl Herbor into these areas, I think Admiral Kimmel
vas aware that some such process .of survey, espionage and
reports was under way; I think he was awvare of t.hat by
virtue of his contacts with the district intelligence
officer.

Mr. Gearhart: But the point remains you had definite
| information to the effect that I have just described, and
you thought you were fulfilling your full responsibility

| when you leftAdmirel Kimmel to guess that they were exercils-

ing espionage over his command?
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Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Mr. Gearhart
Admirel Wilkinson: I did not leave him to guess. Our

district intelligence officer and his fleet intelligence

officer wa.'s awvare of the espionage. The only thing he vas

not avare of was the message dividing the harbor into five

parts, which might have been for convenience in locating
it on a map, and which probably wes, as we now apprecilate,
information convenient in establishing an attack.

Mr. Gearhart: Yes, and that would indicate to any
man that they were dividing that harbor into parts for the
purpose of making more convenient e possible attack?

Admiral Wilkinson: Very possible.

Mr. Gearhaert: Wouldn't that have been mighty important
information for Admiral Kimmel to have?

Admiral Wilkinson: It would have been useful. He had
been writing himself of the dangers of an air attack. He
had bern drawing up plans for protection against an air
attack. He was convinced that there was a possibility
and a threat of an air attack. It would have been a con-
firmation of his suspicions.

Mr. Gearhart: And being a confirmstion of his suspi-
cions, he proba_bly would have acted, would he not, in the
light of that confirmation? '

Admirel Wilkinson: I am not sure. The message that

arrived was translated on October 9. If he had had the

\}
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message on October 10th, what action he would have taken,

I don't know. He couldn't keep the Fleet at sea for two

Mr, Gearhart: He didn't have to bring them all in
at one time, did he?

Admirel Wilkinson: No, sir, he didn't. Ordinarily
| he had them operating in three sections, as I recall, of
|wh1ch two were at sea at one time,

Mry. Gearhari:: Two less three battleships.

Admirel Wilkinson: Well, that was a particular inci-
dent, as you recall, in that period, but the normal schedule
called for thelr operating in three 'sections, of dividing
the battleships, I believe, among two, if not three, and

{ having them at sea, only one in port at eny time.

i
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Witness 'Wilkinson Questions i:y: Mr. Gearhart

Mr. Gearhart: Now, that information of the division of

| Hawall into five areas, supported by six other 1intercepts,

1
E each one reporting in respect to those arease and with respeoct

'
B

. to the set-up in the harbor, taken all together probably

. would have a very decided effect upon the wind of . the com-

f mander in Hawall;, the commander charzed with the defense of

| the fleet and of our military and naval establishments there,

would it not?

|

Admiral Wilkinson: I should think so. What effect

- At would have I 4o not know, sir, in view of the relatively

. protracted length of time that was affected, nearly two
|

| monthe, whether he would have kept the fleet at sea continu-

:ally or would have pursued a rotational plan he had in effect.

l
| Mr. Gearhart: If Admiral Kimmel had been informed by
|

furnishing him elther 00p1és of the intercepts or the sub-

i
!atanoe thereof, that the Japanese were constantly calling for

further information with respect to ship movements, that

fwould probably have had an effect upon the commander of the

|

'18land, would 1t not?
I
| Admiral Wilkinson: Yes, sir, further information with

‘respaect to the ship movements might well have been desirable

|

. for him to know, but.I do not think 1t would have affected

'the status of the fleet if he had known of these things.

| Mr, Gearhart: Well, you are giving us an expression of
!
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| your thouzhte now, aren't you? ‘

# |\ admiral Wilkinson: Yes, sir. That is what you asked me.

4 i' Mr. Gearhart: Have you a right to assume that Admiral

|

r | Kimmel would have thought the same way you do now or then?
|

!
g ;' Admiral Wilkinson: Not at all, except as a naval offi-
|

8 | Mr., Geurhart: As commandinz officer he had a right to

o | make those deolsions and make whatever conclusions he pleased
| :
¢ | from the information that you should have supplied him with,.

|.
11 is that not ocorreoct?

2| Admiral Wilkinson: He had a right to make any conclusion

— e — e —

i
13

which he pleased. I am not quite as yet in agreement with the

—_—

v | faot I should have supplied it to him,

Mr. Gearhart: And by withholding from him that informa-

S QO 'NOLODNINSYM ""INvd § Quvy MW

|
|
l

!
!
|
\tionbyou withheld from him the right to decide what importance
| .

17 |, ehould be attached to those messages, you denled to him the

i | rizght to evaluate those messages in that way, didn't you,

|

- e ——

f | 1o | and you denied him the right to act in the light of what

‘ - 20 |'Anformation those messages conveyed, didn't you?

|

21" N Admiral Wilkinson: I denied -~ in the first place, I

f

!

| . > |'am not convinced that it was I who was withholding them., In
| ' |

po ?the seoond place, whoever withheld them was not denying him

]

H

o+ | these facilities but not furnishing him the opportunity to

25 |lwork upon them,
{
U

!
1
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' Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Mr. Gearhart

Mr, Gearhart: Yes. Now, I have been referring speoifi-

' cally to the messages which appear --
| Senator Brewster: Mr, Chalrman, would the gentleman

‘yiold at this point because I wanted to complete what I had

iwhloh bears on this particular point Jou are discussing, which

E
"you Just concluded, Are You through with ‘that phase of 1it?

r

| Mr. Gearhart: I was Just g0ing to conolude that phase

of 1t by calling attention to him that I am referring to the

i
i
‘

fimeﬂﬂaseﬂ that appear on page 12, 13, 14, and 15 of exhibit 2

!iin this proceeding, Now do you want me to yield?
!
: Senator Brewster: If you willl;, at that point.

I 1 414 not perhaps make 1t olear, Admiral, as to the pur-

f

-port of my questioning on your testimony before the Roberts
|

éCommiasion which bears I think very directly on this point
1!that Mr, Gearhart has been 8tressing and I think that in

Justioce to you 1t ought to be clear.
As I understand now, I did not realize that your testi-

| _
|mony wae not taken down before the Roberts Commissicn: that

fyou appeared before them and testifled off the record.,

|
!

Admiral Wilkinson: My testimony was not intentionally
l;orr the record, but it was not recorded and reduced exoept as

' a summary of the etatement, I believe,

Senator Brewster: Yes. So that this rezerd which you

l
|
!
|
!made lmmedlately thereafter for Aamiral Stark was the only
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f+reoord, apparently, of your testimony?
f; Admiral Wilkinson: Apparently and which, of course, was

5 imy recollecticn after the fact.

1
|

Senator Brewster! Now, the Roberts Commission, after

|

the preliminaries on the first page, apparently thought 1t

- — -

was important, - they apparently did attach great importance

' to this question of information that Admiral Kimmel had re-

e — N -— -
-

ceived, because at the bottom of the first page you Btate

(Reading):

i " fhey then asked me what information and communi-
s
cations had been sent during the months preceding the

attaock. "

-— . E— e ——

And you turned in a full page there of linformation you

furnished and then you say at the bottom of page Z2:

A ————— -

"Without mentioning partioular dispatches, we had
assured ourselves that all of this information had elther
passed through the CINCS Aslatlo and Pacific Fleets or,

if not, had been furnished them from the Department,"

-

Then 2ame the next paragraph which I have quoted. "The

! Corrandier-in-Chief Pacific had as much information as we hai.”
I think you have now agreed in both the colloquies with
Congressran Gearhart ani myself that that was not strictly

accurate, that they 114 not have all of the inforratlon which

you had here, either in connection wih this particular inter-
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Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Sen. Brewster

ocept and sore of thoge that f:rllowed it and also as to the
broaier 4iploratic phases of it, which rizht be mrore argu-
able, but at any rate was inforration which you hail which he
111 not have.

| Now, the point which I was bringinz out was this, that
the Roberts Committee, which rade the reports bearing on the

responsibility of AAriral Kirrel, apparently 4i41 that on the

| basis of your staterent that Kirrel had all of the "inforra- -

tion whicdh we had", that is the Department here had. If that
i1s nd& 80 1t would be pos aible that thelr conclusions might
have been very Aiffe mnt as to the responsibility of Admiral
Kirrel and any o_thera concerned, if they had1 hai a more ac-
curate picture of what hal been furnished to Kirrel, would that
not be 8o :P

AArirsl Wilkinson: Yes, sir, and thank you for the sug-
gestion., I hai not appreolatéd that when I was answering Mr,
Gearhart, ani in the middle of page 2 you will find Just above
that this sta terent: (Reading) |

"We had, on the first of December, Araftedl a surrary

of inforration awilable to us at that tire, reolting

the Aetslls of the conoentrat ion of Japanese land foroces

in Indo-China, Hainan and Forwosa, ani the several naval

preparations, includlngs

"(a) Reorganization of Japanese Fleets;
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L

"(b) Re';'lmg for war of Japanese shipe by Aocking,

eto.;

"(e) AA1itional naval aircraft to the Mandated
Igland area;

n(4) Establishment of patrol between Marshalls anA
Gilberts;

| "(e) The aotivity of the corbinel Alr Force
(patrol planes and tenders) in South China and the
Mandates;

"(t) ‘The taking over of rany merchant vessels by
the Japanese Navy and the equipment of several anti-
glrcraft ships;

“(g) The railo intellizence with respect to the two

task groups undier the Corranier-=in-Chief Sownﬂineet -

s
B
®
o}
9
v
<
5
1
2
<
Py
I
s
g
g
o
n

Group One operating in the South (hina ares, andil Group
Two in the Mandated Islanis area. (I stated, however,
that nothing in this iter made us foreocast a mo verent as
far east of the Maniated area as Hawall -- whereupon

Mr. Roberts askei the Alstance fror Hawall to the Man-
dates, and1 I told hir the easternrost - Jaluit -- was
sbout 2300 miles, and the rerainier exteniel to the wesl-
ward about 2700 miles. Aoctually the figures are 2100

and 2400.)

"Without mentioning partiocular Algpatches, we haAd




e WS el U

487

5 O .AOTOUIHEAW .JUAY & ORAW

il

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

el

22

23

<4

25

Witness Wilkinson

<
Questions by: Sen. Brewster

assured ourselves that allof thle mroru.ution' -=this
inforration I Just mentioned -~ "had either passed
through the CINCS Aslatlo_and Pacific Fleets or, 1f no?,
hai been furnishedi ther from the Departrent. In afddiitlon,
on Decerber 3rd we hail ascertaineq that Japanese Aiplo-
ratlio én"l consular agencdes hal been ordered to burn all

thelr confidential codes ani papers irreilately, and we

" had relayed this snforration to CINCS Asliatilc and Paciflo

and to the Comraniants of the 1l4th and 16th Naval Dis-
triots, andi had also 4Alrectel our representatives in the
Far East (attaches anl observers) to burn thelr es
ani papers.

"On the evidence avallsble we hail concluded on De-
cerber 1lst that the Japanesé were conterplating an early
attack, prirarily 4lreoctel at Thalland, Burma and the
Malay Peninsula, ani subsequent Aeveloprents hal proved
thie to be true. We had not been able tO obtain intelll-
gence or to develop by inference any indlcation of a
ré.m of Hawail. The Oopranier-in-Chief Paciflic hal as

n_'uoh 1nfomation ag we hal."

I think in speaking of that ani bringing it back I

right well ha v been -- I think T was in Tact referring to
| the faot that he had as much inforpation ae we hai on all of

| that subjeot T hava jJuet read.

\

- i .
B . o t—— bl i il &
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- Questions by: Sen. Brewster

genator Brewster: Certainly the staterent is sorewhat
broader than that. I think it is. We ocan now see here that
it 1s perhaps unfortunate that you 414 not have a corplete
transoript of your evidence because 1t mizht 40 you rore
Justice phan this sorewhat sweeping surrary by yourself woulAd
when you perhaps might not have te en thinkilng of 1;11 that was
involved.

Adriral Wilkinson: No, sl'r.‘ Obviously thie was pre-
pered by re for the private ani personal inforration for
A4qriral Stark, which I hal made, telling hir what I and other
officers hal told the Roberte Cormrission.

Senator Brewster: Yes.

Admiral Wilkinson: That was entirely 4ependent on ry
recolleotion, it had nothing to 1o with the transeript. i
thought notes ha4d been taken. In f;ut, I thought there was &
recorier or stenozrapher prerent ani I was later to have a
record of that but I undierstani none were taken, I unierstanq
none appeared in the record except a two paragraph statement.

Senator Brew_ater: This Aoes hawe the value of havng
been made conterporaneously. .

Adriral Wilkinson: Yes, s8ir.

Senator Brewster: This was waie -~

Admiral Wilkinson: It is my recollection irredlately

after the event.
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Senator Brewster: Yes.

Adriral Wilkinson: But I know, for 1nstance, I 4111 not
tell ther about razic, I 411 not let ther know, - I 114 not
tell ther about all the 1lploratic messages.

Senator Brewster: So that maglo, you say, was freely

1lscussed, as you say later on in the memovanium. You men-

tion that on the next paze.

Adriral Wilkinson: My hearlng*waa‘vevy brief. They were
interestedl in the actual woverents of foroces an1 I 414 not go
at any length into the A4iscussion of the Alploratic magic.

Senator Brewster: On page 4 at the bottor you say:

"The reeting was 4lscussing the ¥aglo freely but

etatedl they would be most @areful that no rention of 1t

would be rade."

Adrlral Wilkinson: Yes, eir.

Senator Brewster: So that was apparently one of the
toplcs that was gone into to a material extent.

Alriral Wilkinson: Ithink the Aiscussion I had1 with ther
as to the mazio was simrply as to the fourteen part mwessaze.

Mr, Gesell: Senator, would i1t be helpful to put the en-
tire text of the merorandur in thé recor4? We have read Aif-

ferent portions, at Aifferent tires, ani1 to show the relation-

|ship of the excerpts wouldn't 1t be a good 1dea toput 1t all

in?

i "
" - - ' | LV LAY ' L .. = adk Lﬂd
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Witness Wilkingon Quegtions by Sen. Brewster

Senator Brewster: I think 1t woulA be heloful to put it
all in.

The Vice Chairran: You want it incluiel at this point

in the record?
Mr. Gesell: Yes. I think it woulA be a good 1dea.
The Vice Chairrman: It is so oriered. .

Mr. Gesell: If it 18 so orie rel I think it woulAd be
helpful.

The Vice Chairman: All rizht.

(The merorandumr above referred to is in wordis and

figures as follows, to-wit:)

Io-p_le copy No. b of 5,
SECRET

R = T T

Decerber 19, 1941
Se Fe C<R-E~.T

MEMORANDUM FOR THE CHISF OF NAVAL OPERAT IONS
— e o2 Yot YUF NAVAL U

Subject: Proceedinzs of President's Investizating
Corrittee, 1000 to 1200, Decerber 19, 1941,

On notifi mtion from Admi;al Reeves, recelvel at 0915,

I reportedi to Justice Roberts' Corrission at ten o'clock in
the Munitidns Building. General Miles was also there, accom-

‘panieﬂ.by the chief of his Far Eastern Divigion, Colonel R,

S. Bratton; Corranier MoCollum aocoﬁpanieﬂ re. The Comrmrisg-

glon stated they wiche?d the Armry an1 Navy Intellizence to

= il
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Witness Wilkinson

cooperate in their answers; that they would hearGeneral Miles
first bu‘c' right ask we any questions that might arlise during
his 4iscusslon.

General Miles was then questioned, ani in the rain his
testirony was not interrupted by any side questions to re; 80
that Aespite the staterent of Jolnt questloning the actual
effeot was corplete testirony by General Miles, followeAd by
rine. In faot, Genersl Miles was excused, because of prepara-
tions for Aeparture frow the city this afternoon on an inspec-
tion trip, irredlately after hie testimony, although Colonel
Bratton remalneAd.

They askedl General Miles ralnly what reports ani instruc-
tions his orrice ani the cormrand in Hawalii had exchanged for
a period of approxirately one month prior to the actual at-

tack. He mentioned corrunications regariing possibllities of

laabotage anl 4decoribedi at some length the events in General

Marshall's office, including the sendiing of the subsequently
Aelayed 4ispatch to General Short on the rorning of SunAday,
Decerber» 7th. He mentioned his experience in service in the
Islanis and1 gaid that in the past the concern of __G-E of the
Arry had been rather in sabotage than in a military raid. He

sald hieg stuiies as war plans officer there had, however, en-

visaged the possibility of a rall ani that he had reached the

conclusion that a succesaful raid was posslble azgalnst a garri-

' : i . o
ol it iBtaritiel bid 2 - Aot tninaases il o oo . asaa Lo Ros



4812

3
<
®
0
v
v
<
2
3

<2 .0 AOTOMIHEAW

10

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

16

20

el

22

23

24

25

Witness Wilkinson

gon which ha4l not been warned, but was not poseible azainst a
garrison which had been warneA.

They then asked me what information anA corrunicationg had
been sent Auring the months precedling the attack. I said that,
for an unierstaniing of the ploture, I would like to "leadribe
our avenuee of lntelligzence, an1 then rentioned the Naval
Attaches we had mailntained in the Far East, an1 the seventeen
al1ltional observere and consular shipping advisers we haAd
established in the past year. These inforrants reportei m t-
ters which they ascertained either by their own observation or

by contaots whioh they wight make. We had in the past haAd

| secret azents in Japan but we had none re cently since those

we hal hal hai not survived. Aleo a source of inforration
was the radlo net and the intercepted 1lspatches, utilizing
the facllities of the 14th and 16th Naval DistMots. Infor-
ration 4dispatches were received by us and the forces in the
fleld kept inforred, and the Chief of Naval Operations haA

testlfled as to actual warning 4dlspatches which he had gent

| in thé period irredilately prior to the attack. As to the

actual interchange of e ssages with reference to in telligenoce,
in general the sources reported thelr inforration to us via
the Corranier-in-Chief of the Asiatio and in forwarding it

the Cormander-in-Chief Pacifio was usually advisei, We haAq,

on the first of Decerber, 1 raftedi a surrary of informration

|
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avallable to us at that tire, reciting the details of the cone-
centration of Japanese landi forces in Indo-China, Hainan and

Forwosa, and the s everal naval preparations, including:

{a) Reor;anizatlon of Japanese Fleets;

(b) Reaiying for war of Japanese ships by 1ocking,
eto.;

(0) AA4itional naval alvoraft to the Mandated Island
area;

(1) Establishrwent of patrol between Marshalls and
Gilberts;

(e) The activity of the corbined Air Force (patrol
planes ani tenies ) in South China and the ManAates:

(f) The taking oveér of meny merchant vessels by the
Japanese Navy and the equiprent of several anti-airoraft
ships;

(g) The radio intelligence with reagpect to the two
tagk zZroups unier tine Corranier-in-Chief Seocond F'leef -
Group One operating in the South China area, and Group
Two in the Manﬂateﬁ Islends area. (I stated, however,
that nothinz in this iter made us foreoast a moverent as
fer east of the Mandatedl area as Hawall —-- whereupon
Mr, Roberts asked the iistﬁnoe fror Hawall to the

Mandates, andi I told him the easternmrost — Jaluit - was

about 2300 miles, and the remrailnier extended to the west-

T | NoT N
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L

wari about 2700 riles. Actually the fizures a re 2100 anAd

2400.)

Without mentioning particular 4ispatches, we had assured
ourselves that all of this inforration had either passed
through the CINCS Agiatio anA Pacifio Fleets or, if not, haA
been furnighed ther fror the Departwent. In adiition, on
Decerber 3r4i we hal ascertained that Japanese Aiploratioc anA
consular azencles had e en ordered to burn all their confiden-
tial codes and papers irreilately, an1 we had relayedl this in-

forration to CINCS Asiatic and Pacific and to the Corrandants

: of the 14th and 16th Naval Districts, ani had also Aireoted

our representatives in the Far Epst (attaches ani otmervers)
to burn thelr codes ani papers.

On the eviience avallable we hal concluded on Decerber lst
that the Japanese were conterplating an early attadk , primarily
Alrectel at Thalland, Burra and the Malay P eninsula, anl sub-
sequent developrents hal proved this to be true. We had not
been able to obtain intelligence or to Aevelop by inference
any indlcation of a raid on Hawall. The Corranier-in-Chief
Favific had1 as ruch inforration as we had, but I ryself could
not expect that he ani his staff would infer positively a
rali on Hawall any rore than we had been able to 4o fror the

gsare inforration. I bellieved the ra11 had been aside from

the maln effort, andi to my belief the Japanese striking force

\
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had retired to the westward irrellately afterwaris. We had no
o nclusive evilence of any Japanese surface vessels operating
thereafter to the eastward of Hawail, although i1t was probable
that sowe subrnrines had core into the eastern Paciflo and

poseibly were still there.

The Corrission asked as to the control of flshing boats
in the vicinity of Hawail. I sald that I knew that even be-
fore I left there in May there had been weasures to effectuate
sontrol of these boats - firet, Wy denying non-citizens the
rizht to own ar4 use ther; and seconi, by either reroving or,
in sore way I thought, controlling their radiio. These efforte
were made principally by the Coast Guari as thelr proper
province, although guidied by the advice of the Corrandant's
office. Such measures as have been t2ken since the Coast
Guard was incorporated into the Navy would, of course, be
rore 4irectly under his cormand,

Under the Delimitaticn Agreerent, regariing the speclal
investigatory services, the actual investigations of all
vivilian population in Hawaili were in charge of the Federal
Bureau of Investigetion, but I knew the military an4i naval
counter-intelligence services were closely alllel with the
FBI, and that I felt sure that with the fishing boats Captain

Mayfield ani Naval Intelligence gave actual assistance where

possible, Mr. Roberts sald that they would fin4 out more of

\l
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that ex8ct situation when they ot out thdre.

They asked what arrangerents we had in the Intellizence
branch of the Navy Departrent as to inforration 4uring Satur-
Aay night (Decerber 6); I said that rcsponsible offiocerrs were
on telephone call, but that in ad1ition there was an officer
wat ¢ in our Forelgn Br~nch, in our Aqprinistrative Branch, in
our Domestic Intelligence Branch, and that, bezinning on
Friiay night I hail set a watch over the week-end1 in the Far
Baatérn section 1ltself. I saidl that Comranier MoCollur hsad
relleved Lt. Cordr. Watts at 0800 Suynday, that I had arriveAd
at the office at about 0900, and that only then had the last
part of the Mazic (the mreeting was Alscusgeing the laglo
freely but statedi they would be rost careful that no mention
of 1t would be wade) arrived containing the final instruotions
to the Japanese Arbassaiors in Washington to break off nego-
tiations, whereas the previous parts which had been avd lable
to us the preceiing night hai been rore argurentative in sense
anil rather of the type of a ‘White Paper' 4esigned subse-
quently for public-tion.

Soretire after 0900 Sunday the inforration came that the
preaentatinn of the complete ﬁessaqe, which was to be with-
held until a later 4dlspatch announcing the hour, was not 4i-

rectedl to be made at 1300, Washington tire. I said I under-

| stood1 by hearsay that the actual call requesting the appoint-
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ment was not made until 1300 an1 that the appointrent was
granted for 1345 - but that the State Departrent was, of cours-,
aware of these t_'.u;-u.

I s2i1 that we had reported this inforration to you, and
that while we were Alscussing 1t you had tolked over the phone
with General Marshall, ani that I unierstood you an4 General
Marshall hal mentioned (to the Comrission) your conversation
ani1 the 4ispatch he sent.
| The Cormrission asked about the RADAR installations on the

| shipe =n1 in Hawall. I understood that the Army had RADAR on

shore, an1 I knew we hadl & inetallel on a few ships. However,
1t only works on a 4ireot line such as the eye 10es, ani in .
consequence, the RADAR on the ships 8o fitted which were in

| Pearl Harbor could not be effeotive because of the interposi-

tion of the mountains and the hills and the land in general.

|
Sore of the ships which were out of port were equipped with

RADAR but, as far as I knew, they had not picked up anything
| on them - agaln because of the limitations of the dAevice - the

| airvature of the earth limiting its range.

With regard to the general question of the readiiness of
the Intelligence Service, I said th4 on the recorrendation of
ry predecessor, Captailn Kirk, as early as last April the Chief
of Naval Operations haAd s‘ent ou't a 1lspatch that, because of

| past experience with reference to the Axis beginning eotivities

# - - a ]
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on Saturdays or Suniays or on national-holidays, the per-
sonnel of the naval intelligence servioce should be partioulaw-
ly careful on those days. Acgain in llaﬂc;h the Chilef of Naval
Operations had Alrected an adivanced state of readiness of the
District Intellizence organlzation, had 4ireoted the placing
of coastal inforration sections in active status in May, the
further expansion of District Intellizence organizations in

}Mayf anl a complete etate of readiness had been 4ireoted in

| July.

I After ry testimony Lieutenant-General C., D. Herron, who

”

| relinqulshed corrand in early February in Hawall, testifleqd

| rainly about his preparations anﬁ_hia general praoctice as to

alert stations. He eald tha last winter he had had ther in
the fleld1 for slx weeks on the alert, but had subsequently

roilfiedl that in some degree although he had maintained guns

at thelr fileldl stations. He sald his prirary plan was to
use anti-alroeraft for the 1efense of Pearl Harbor, to use
fighting planes to control the ailr, ani to have infantry sup-

port covering landiing beaches. He sail that he consiiered the

rost danzerous tire to be dawn, particularly because of the
pos 81bllity of approach Auring the night of enery vessels,

ghether alrcraft carriers or an actual ralding expedlition.

, The Cormission asked if he considered Sunday morning the

wost lax time Iin the d1efenses, and consequently the rost ad-

\ .
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Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Mr. Gearhart

vantazeous tire for an attack. He sall that with regari to
the reserves, Yes, because they were more likely to be on
leave or other privileges, but with regardi to the actual sta-
tions in the fielA he oonsliiered thﬁt they should be as ef-
ficient ani as fully manned on Suniays as on any other morn-
inz. He personally made many dawn inspections on Sundays to
check on and insure thelr readiness.

T. 8. WILKII:ISDN
Coples
No. 1 - CNO
No. 2 - ACNO
NOo. & = Op=12
No, 4 - Op-¥5=-F-2
No, 5 -« Op-1l6,"

Mr, Geat;harts Adriral, 41141 you ever Zive any attentidn
or consiieratinn to the possibllity of transritting the sub-
stance or the coples of those intercepts that I have d4irected
your atteﬁtion to?

Aamiral Wilkinson: No, sir. As I have stated, ry re-
sponsibility was limife-l to aen'nng out, or incluied what was

liritat 1on, the seniing out of all information except that

respecting enery comrunic-tions ani that which wizht requlire

or involve operationagl plans and rovemrents. Thls ressage was

e ll-.- PN W g
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2 || of that character. I ar not convinced that I would have been

3 asuthorized or perritted to send that out » Or whether I shoﬁl'l

4 || have given it or suggested to another azency that it shoulA
seni 1t out, but in any respeoct, answering your question, I
6 114 not consider sending it out because I 4141 not evaluate it,
a8 I had not, as an indication of the ietailéﬁ iételliqenoo

8 they AesireA.

9 Mr. Gearhart: Well, 4i1 you consider Hawaii to be
10 || beyond poseibility of attaock?

3 Adriral Wilkinson: No, sir.
g 12 Mr. Gearhart: DiAd you think it was beyond probability
; 13 ) of attack?
§ " Adriral Viilkinson: Yes.
: 15 Mr, Gearhart: Is that the reason why you 114 not ade-
) 16 quately evaluate those messages concerning ship woverents -
i Adriral Wilkinson: No, sir.
> Mr. Gearhart: (Continuing) -- in and arouni Hawaii?
19 Adriral Wilkinson: No, sir, 1t haq nothing to 4o with
20 |l the possiblity versus the probabllity of ther,
el Mr. Gearhart: Di41 you refrain fropm transritting ocopies
2z of intercepts for any pavtioular' reason?
83 Afriral Wilkineon: If I considered sending ther, which
24 I qoubt,I woul4 have vefrained from eeniing coples of ther
2s

becauge of dAsnzer to the code, the code bresking activities.
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Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Mr. Gearhart

Mr. Gearhart; What was the practice of your Aivision?

Adriral Wilkinson: Not to senAd coples outsiie the Navy
Department and to limit thosf very carefully.

Mr, Gearhgrts D1 yau ever senl any coples of inter-
cepts? |

Adriral Wilkingon: Not to my knowledAze anA only at the
last roment 411 I send the zist of such an intercept, when we
sald that the Alploratic agencles have been told to burn their
codes. |

Mr. Gearhart: Now, by transwitting that inforwration any

Japanege who cracked our code would know that we had cracked

thefrg, wouldin't they?

‘ Adriral Wilkinson: Not only that, but if any widespread
conversation or dlscussion had core to the ears of any Japan-
ese azents, they would have known we hal oracked 1t. I think
our code was falrly secure. What we were atternting to avoiA

l was the spread of knowledge that we were enzazel 1 codle break-

ing andi had succeeded in breaking their code.

I think I recall that General Marshall testifiedA that he
had heard ruwrors that that knowledge was beginning to leak out.

Mr. Gearhart: You were present when General Marshall
wrote out the messaze on the 7th of_Decewber, the one that
arrived in Hawall too late?

Adriral Wilkinson: No, sir.
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Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Mr. Gearhart

Mr. Gearhart: You were not awong those in that group?

Adriral Wilkinson: No, sir.

Mr, Gearhart: iell. in that ressage he tells thew that
"Tomorrow the Japanese are going to Aeliver an ultiratur to
the State Departrent® and also that they were going to 1eliver
it at one :;'olook. He 111 not hesitate to tell what he haA
learned through reading the interocept 3, 111 he?

Adriral Wilkinson: No, seir, not 411 we in send1ing out
the wmessage about breaking the ocodes.

Mr. Gearhart: As a ratter of fact, your office had been
seniing out the substance of intercepts all Aurdng the year
of 10417

A9riral Wilkinson: I believe not, sir. I think thoge

ressages you spoke of were sent out by the Corrunications of-

fice,

Mr. Gearhart: What 4oee "OPNAV" stand for?

Adriral Wilkineon:; OPNAVY That is Chief of Naval
Operations offioce as a whole. Is there any nun-ber, srall
nurber on it afterwardis, Op-13, Op-20, sorething like that?

Mr., Gearhart: "“OPNAVY is the way this reades.

Adriral Wilkinson: That 18 general operations of the

Navy, yes.

Mr. Gearhart: That means the Chief of Naval Operations?

Admirs]l Wilkinson: Or gomreone 1n+hia office. The' actual

- [ W S TRC——— T W — e ——
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Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Mr. Gearhart

0fflce nurber if i1t 1s preparel in a suboriinate office would
be 1niicated by a nurber such as Op-200 which would be Com-
runlcations, or Op=16, which would be Intelligence.

Mr. Gearhart: Well, you have lookeAd through these mes-
sages that have beeh sent ther by OPNAV, have you not, during
the year of 19417

Adrlral Wilkinson: I have seen this book. I ar not sure
that I recall which were sent out by OPNAV and whioch were

otherwise indicateA.

Mr, Gearhart: Well, here 18 one that was sent out on

| the 7th Aay of July 1941 to the Cormander-in-Chief of the

Asldlo Fleet ondl for the information of the Corranier-in-
Chief of the Paoific Fleet. This reads:
"TOKY0 TO WASHINGTON 1 JULY 029 ¢
"Japan DIRECTS EIGHT MARUS ON EAST COAST UNITED
STAT®ES RUSH CARGO HANDLING AND PROCEED COLON PASS THROUGH l
CANAL TO PACIFIC BETWEEN 16 AND 22 JULY ON FOLLOWING
SCHEDULE; 16TH TOKAI; 17TH", and so forth, naring a
lot of Adates.,
Adq'iral Wilkinson: Yes.
Mr. Gearhart: You have that before you, @o you?
Adriral Wilkinson: Yes. ‘

Mr. Gearhart: Page 6 of exhibit 37.

Adriral Wilkinson: Yes.
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» 3 || was received from interceonts, is it not?

4 Adriral Wilkinson: Yes.
5 Mr. Gearhart: Turn over to page 7.and1 you '1111 find an-
8 other messaze.
7 Aqriral Wilkinson: Yes, sir.
8 Mr. Gearhart: That 1s a transrittal by OPNAV or whatever
o || you call i1t of inforration rececived fror intercepts, isn't 17
10 | Adriral Wilkinson: Yes, sir.

§ 11 n Mr. Gearhart: Llkewlse the next, on page 87

; 12 Adriral Wilkinson: Yea,' sir.

5

; 13 Mr. Gearhart: And paze 97

; 14 Adriral Wilkineon: Yes, sir.

E 15 Mr. Gearhart: Page 107

3 16 | Adriral Wilkinson: Yes, slr. Those were all sent out
17 by the Corrunliocations office and all sent out in July., I e
18 : informed that that practice was 4iscontinued after July. 1In
19 any event, 1t was not umier the Office of Naval Intelligzence.
20 Mr. Gearhart: That was sent out because soreone who then
2l had the ;ayso believed that it was necessary to aldvice Adréri-
22 can corrmaniers in the fleld of information that was recelved
23 in intercents? .
24 Adriral Wilkinson: Yes, sir. There was a balance be-
25 || tween the inforration ?Eing out and1 the secumMity of the code
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Witness Wilkinson

Mr. Gearhart: That is transrittal of inforration that
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breaking proocesses. I;
Mr. Gearhart: Yes, . |
Adriral Wilkinson: As we have heard a few rorents ago,

slr, there were rumors of the suspioions as to code breaking ;

ani 4uring the surmer ani fall every atterpt was made to
tighten up the security. This practice was apparently 4s- |

continued ani1 we were constantly being warneil by all hands to - E

be careful about how the code breaking was threatened, the ]

knowledge of cole breaking was possible of suspicion.
Mr. Gearhart: All right. Now, 1n.a lot of those mes- Ti
sages that I called your attention to, the ones vel ating to

shlp moverents and inquiries concerning ship roverents, 4141

they take on any greater importance in your rind when the

Navy tranclatel this ressage fror Tokyo to Washington, 5 Nover-

ber 1941, translated on November Dy 19413 1

"Because of various cirocumstances, it 1s absolutely
necessary that all arrangerents for the signingz of this
agreerent be completed by the 25th of this month. I
realize that this 1s a Aifficult ordier, but unier the
cirocurstances 1t 1s an unavoidable one. Please under-
8tani this thoroughly and tackle the problemr of saving
the Japanese~U. 8. relations fror falling into a chaotio

condiition, Do so with great deterrination ani1 with un-

stinted effort, T hee of wvan,

\
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1 Lﬁ Witness Wilkinson ~ Questlons by: Mr. Gearhart
2 | “This inforration 1s to be kept strictly to yourself
3 I only.,"
4 Noaw , when you read that message of a 1ead line being

5 || fixed by Japan for the 4oing of sorething, A11n‘'t the previous
8 Japanese ship moverent intercepts take on a new and a more

7 irportant aspect in your ‘eatimation?

8 Adriral Wilkinson: I would not say that it 114, seir.

) That was in the charscter of prospeoctive 4Aiploratic negotia-
10 tions that they were anxious to reach a conclusion on. Our

11 war plans people were fully cognizant of it. They were aware

12 of the 1iploratic negotiations and, in fact, on Ootober 16th

13 they hal sent out a warning mwessaze, on Noverber 24th they
14 sent another and on Noverber 27th still another. These res-

15 sages were 1ln a class of affecting the operations of the Fleet,

2 0 MMOTOVMIHEAW JUAT 4 QRAW

16 || which I 414 not feel was in my province to relay.

be l| Mr. Gearhart: When you real the intercept fror Tokyo
18 to Hong Kong 4ated Noverber 14, 1941, translated Noverber £6,

19 |l 1941, in which the following is salA;

20 | "Should the negotiations colkapse, the international
. 22 one of trerenious orisis. Accorpanying this, the Emrpire's

! forelzn policy as it has been Aecided by the cabinet,

21 g sltuation in which the Emrpire will find herself will be

23
24 ingofar as 1t pertains to China, 1s:
“5 "a. Ve will completely Aeatroy British and Aweriosan
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power in China.

"D. We will take over all enery concessions anid enenry
iwportant rights anl1 interests (ocustors ani winerals,
etc.) in China.

"o, We will take over all rights ani interests owneA
by enery powers, even though they right have connections

with the new Chinese governrent should it becowre necessary."

When you read that warlike intercept 4i1n't the inter-
est in our ship woverents in Hawall take on an adled import-
ance in your estiration?

Adriral Wilkinson: I would say the interest in our ghip
woverents everywhere 411. The interest of the enery esplonage
in the moverenrt of our ships an1 tke inforration they Ais-
patohed in conjunction with the ressages hitherto were all
ratters consliered by the question of how the fleet wovlAd
operate an1 what it would 4o an1 were measures unier the
Jurlsiioction of the War Plans seotion.

Mr. Gearhart: Now, in the light of these last two inter-
cepts that I have called your attention to, intercepts having
to 10 with a deal line and Japan's rartial intentions, after
you resd ther and yoﬁ say the shipping wrovemrent intercepts
took on a wore irportant aspect ani a greater importance, 4iA
you at that tire zive any considerations to whether or not

you shoulq transrilt t& Adriral Kimrel the substance of the ghip

\




